
5/4/2023 Agenda  

 

 
 
 

 
AGENDA 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF BEDFORD, VA 
Bedford County Administration – Ground Floor Training Room 

122 E Main Street 
Bedford, VA 24523 

May 4, 2023 
5:30 p.m. 

 
(1) CALL TO ORDER 

 
(2) APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
(3) APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES – April 6, 2023 

 
(4) REPORTS 

A. Economic Development Director’s Report 
B. Business Programs Report 
C. Monthly Financial Report 
D. Monthly Accounts Payable Report – (see April bills that have been paid) 

 

EDA   

EDA Mileage – April meeting $111.79 

  

Bedford Center  

Town of Bedford Power – CVCC  $3,219.40 

Peaksview Landscaping  $483.34 

BRWA – CVCC  $146.37 

  

New London  

Southside Electric $609.82 

Peaksview Landscaping  $1,494.17 

  

Washington Street  

Peaksview Landscaping  $121.67 

  

TOTAL: $6,186.56 

 
 

 



5/4/2023 Agenda  

 

(5) SELF INSURANCE PROPOSAL 
A. Review and approval of VAcorp self-insurance proposal. 

 
(6) BUDGET 

A.  Approval of FY24 EDA Budget 
 

(7) TOWN OF BEDFORD  
 

(8) BEDFORD CENTER FOR BUSINESS 
 
(9) MONTVALE CENTER FOR COMMERCE 

 
(10) NEW LONDON BUSINESS AND TECHNOLOGY CENTER 

A.   Review appraisals for lots 2, 4, 8 and 11. 
 

(11) WASHINGTON STREET PROPERTY 
                 A.  Request for action regarding parking lot paving project 
 

(12) OTHER BUSINESS 
A. Request for water tower funds related to Source4’s expansion 
B. Review request to amend the covenants in Forest Professional Park 

 
(13) CLOSED SESSION 

Closed Session pursuant to Section 2.2-3711 (A) (5), Discussion concerning a prospective business or 
industry or the expansion of an existing business or industry where no previous announcement has been 
made of the business' or industry's interest in locating or expanding its facilities in the community. 
(Related to prospects for New London and Bedford) 

 
 
 
 
 

 



04/06/2023 Agenda  

 

 
 
 

 
Minutes 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF BEDFORD, VA 
Bedford County Administration – Ground Floor Training Room 

122 E Main Street 
Bedford, VA 24523 

April 6, 2023 
5:30 p.m. 

       Economic Development Authority: 
Present: David Wells (District 1); Vicki Gardner (District 2); Wyatt Walton (District 3); 
Matthew Braud (District 4); Kristy Milton (District 5); Jimmy Robertson (District 6); Jim 
Messier (District 7) 
Staff Present: Pam Bailey – Economic Development Director; Holley Scheffel – Business 
Programs Coordinator; Robert Hiss – County Administrator; Patrick Skelley-County Attorney; 
Trish Luger –Administrative Assistant 
Guests: Charla Bansley (District 3); Mickey Johnson (District 7) 

 
 

(1) CALL TO ORDER  
Chairman Robertson called the meeting to order at 5:32 p.m. 
 

(2) APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Chairman Robertson called for a motion to approve the agenda as presented.  
Mr. Messier moved, seconded by Mr. Braud. 
Adopted Unanimously 

 
(3) APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES – February 2, 2023 

Chairman Robertson asked for a motion to approve the February meeting minutes. Mr. 
Braud moved, seconded by Mr. Messier 
Adopted Unanimously 

 
(4) REPORTS 

A. Economic Development Director’s Report 
        Ms. Bailey had a follow-up meeting with Supervisor Tuck, Supervisor Johnson, 
Tourism and Economic Development staff to further discuss the Tourism Zone initiative. 
Mr. Tuck and Mr. Johnson have asked Tourism staff to reach out to a developer before 
taking further action with the plan.  
       Staff is waiting for the performance agreement from the Virginia Economic 
Development Partnership for the Virginia Business Ready Sites plan grant. This most 
likely will be added to next year’s budget due to the timing. 



04/06/2023 Agenda  

 

        The Spring VEDA Conference in Newport News highlighted the importance of 
business retention and expansion visits, as well as workforce quality and quantity. 
Projects on the state level are seeing a shift from project work towards manufacturing, 
but with project size decreasing.  
        Virginia has a gap of 600,000 people in the number of jobs from where they are 
trending and where they want to be. The need is to focus on eco system and building 
upon home grown companies with better talent and infrastructure and organic 
economic growth. Factors such as moving south and less births are causing shortages. 
    The Building Capacity & Community Conference in Blacksburg was beneficial. This 
agritourism conference was a reminder that Bedford County has been successfully doing 
agritourism for many years.    

 
B. Business Programs Report 

    Thirty students from all three are high schools attended the Hospitality and 
Tourism Industry Tour March 29, hosted by Mariners Landing Resort and Country Club. 
The Property Manager spoke about managing a 1,200-acre facility. PGA Pro Golfer and 
Director of the Pro Shop explained the greens, different cuts of grass, and the retail 
side of the pro shop. Director of Facilities spoke about equipment used on the property 
and projects he oversees. The Director of HR, Laura Moritz, spoke about the 
importance of etiquette, resume tips and tricks, advising references and knowing 
personal information to include. 

 
 The April 26 Utilities Tour will include BRWA, Town of Bedford main facility and 
their solar farm. Career Coaches at both Jefferson Forest and LHS/SHRS are leaving. 
Directors of School Counseling will then have to take on the assisting the program. 
These positions are to be posted this summer.  

     
May 4 is Signing Day for BCPS students enlisting in the military and/or have 

accepted full-time employment in a CTE field.  
 
May 10 is Business Appreciation at ElectricCo Art in Bedford from 5-7 p.m. 

ElectricCo will be closing their market at the end of the month.  
 

 
C. Monthly Financial Report 
  Nothing out of the ordinary this month. Liberty University has paid the CAM fees 
since the report was generated. Nanotouch will pay once the building is sold.  
D. Monthly Accounts Payable Report – (see Feb. – Mar. bills that have been paid) 

Public Works is currently requesting inquiries for Montvale mowing due to current 
provider no longer servicing. Suggestions were to inquire with a local farmer or the 
nearby school.  

 
 
 



04/06/2023 Agenda  

 

 

EDA   

EDA Mileage – Feb/March meeting $199.76 

  

Bedford Center  

Town of Bedford Power – CVCC  $7,916.96 

Peaksview Landscaping  $966.68 

BRWA – CVCC  $307.86 

  

New London  

Southside Electric $1,219.24 

Peaksview Landscaping  $2,988.34 

  

Washington Street  

Peaksview Landscaping  $243.34 

  

TOTAL: $13,842.18 

 
 

 
(5) BUDGET 

A. Presentation of FY24 draft budget 
  Points of Reference:  

• Building Repair Maintenance Fund: Suggesting lowering to $120,000. Discussion to spend  
$150,000 (this year’s budget) for paving, but time may not allow the expense to be 
utilized this fiscal year. 

• Mowing/Montvale – increased due to excess rain. Subject to change upon updated 
quotes. 

• VBRSP Grant – modified to show Phase 2 match with income of $63,750 and expenditures 
of $127,000. 

• Any changes to this draft can be contingent upon the Board of Supervisors County budget 
approval. 

 
(6) TOWN OF BEDFORD 

Nothing new to report 
 

(7) BEDFORD CENTER FOR BUSINESS 
No new updates currently 

 
(8) MONTVALE CENTER FOR COMMERCE 

The planning department has approved the plats, but the survey company is waiting on 
BRWA to review them.  



04/06/2023 Agenda  

 

(8) NEW LONDON BUSINESS AND TECHNOLOGY CENTER  
A.  Future development and expansion discussion  

Charles Parkhurst has been hired to appraise lots 2, 4, 8 & 11. Nanotouch’s building is for 
sale. It’s 10,000 sq ft. total with 2500 sq. ft. fully furnished office space and 7,500 sq. ft. 
of warehouse, manufacturing, and distribution space.  
 

(9) WASHINGTON STREET PROPERTY 
A.  Request for action regarding parking lot paving project 

      Rough estimate $261,844. The school divisions are not interested in participating and 
Board of Supervisors has not been asked to participate. The Town is not participating but has 
offered to help with trees through a grant. The Beford Rotary may be able to assist with a 
grant to plant trees along Washington St. and Bridge St. as part of their 100th anniversary 
project. An RFP can be initiated to begin a formal process for repaving and realigning the 
parking lot. As the lot is used for store customers and employee parking, a request to the 
County is acceptable. Mr. Walton reiterated using some or all the $120,000 given by the 
County for incentives for this project since there are no incentive applications pending.  Ms. 
Bailey will follow up with Wendall Dawson to review discussion/concerns and follow up with 
Doug to put together a request for bid, reporting back to the EDA at the May 4 meeting.  
 

(9) OTHER BUSINESS 
A. Request to close out KMR Aviation performance agreement. 

                  Chairman Robertson asked for a motion for KMR to pay $12,500 (half of agreement) 
                 and to close agreement. Mr. Walton moved, seconded by Ms. Milton. 
                 Adopted Unanimously 

B. Discuss request for extension or close out of the Custom Truck performance 
agreement. 

                Chairman Robertson asked for a motion to close out the agreement for Custom Truck.  
        Mr. Walton moved, seconded by Mr. Wells. 
        Adopted Unanimously 

Discussion followed that due to absence of performance evidence from Custom Truck, Ms. 
Milton suggested incorporating language into any future agreements stating specifically how 
and when the evidence is to be provided. 

C. Request to close out Neathawk Lumber performance agreement. 
  Chairman Robertson asked for a motion to close out Neathawk Lumber. Mr. Messier
 moved, seconded by Mr. Walton. 
 Adopted Unanimously 

D. Request from Source4 for water infrastructure funds 
  Request is currently denied. Will discuss in the future once more information can be 
provided about the current investment information is received.  
 

(10) CLOSED SESSION 
Closed Session pursuant to Section 2.2-3711 (A) (5), Discussion concerning a prospective business or 
industry or the expansion of an existing business or industry where no previous announcement has been 
made of the business' or industry's interest in locating or expanding its facilities in the community. 



04/06/2023 Agenda  

 

(Related to a prospect for New London) 

Mr. Walton moved, seconded by Mr. Braud  to enter into Closed Session. 
Adopted Unanimously 
Voting Yes: Mrs. Gardner, Mr. Walton, Mr. Braud, Mrs. Milton, Mr. Robertson, Mr. Messier, 
Mr. Wells 
Voting No: None 

 
Chairman Robertson called for a motion to adjourn the April 6, 2023, meeting. A motion was 
made by Mr. Braud and seconded by Mr. Walton to adjourn the meeting. 

 
Adjournment  
7:01 p.m. 

 
 

 
 
       



Bedford County, VA

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 04/26/2023 01:44
User:             pbailey
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      1

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2023 12

ACCOUNTS FOR:                                 ORIGINAL    TRANFRS/     REVISED                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
556      ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY        APPROP     ADJSTMTS      BUDGET     YTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

561500 EDA INTEREST EARNINGS              

561500 415101  INTEREST ON BANK                      0           0           0      -1,886.25            .00       1,886.25  100.0%
561500 415210  BRWA CELL TOWER I                     0           0           0     -13,265.10            .00      13,265.10  100.0%

     TOTAL EDA INTEREST EARNINGS                     0           0           0     -15,151.35            .00      15,151.35  100.0%

561800 EDA MISC REVENUE                   

561800 418901  MISCELLANEOUS REV                     0           0           0        -897.48            .00         897.48  100.0%

     TOTAL EDA MISC REVENUE                          0           0           0        -897.48            .00         897.48  100.0%

561900 EDA RECOVERED COSTS                

561900 419010 BLVAC RECOVERED CO                -1,448           0      -1,448      -1,447.59            .00            .00  100.0%
561900 419010 DMPRE RECOVERED CO                  -390           0        -390        -390.41            .00            .00  100.0%
561900 419010 LU RECOVERED COSTS                -2,597           0      -2,597      -2,596.58            .00           -.42  100.0%*
561900 419010 NANO RECOVERED COS                  -393           0        -393            .00            .00        -393.00     .0%*
561900 419010 SMPLM SMPLM -RECOV                -1,061           0      -1,061      -1,060.89            .00           -.11  100.0%*

     TOTAL EDA RECOVERED COSTS                  -5,889           0      -5,889      -5,495.47            .00        -393.53   93.3%

564100 EDA OTHER FINANCING SOURCES        

564100 441110  TRANSFER FROM GEN              -163,055           0    -163,055            .00            .00    -163,055.00     .0%*

     TOTAL EDA OTHER FINANCING SOURCES        -163,055           0    -163,055            .00            .00    -163,055.00     .0%

565600 EDA ADMINISTRATION                 

565600 531110  ACCOUNTING & AUDI                 8,000           0       8,000       7,100.00            .00         900.00   88.8%
565600 531120  ADVERTISING SERVI                 6,500           0       6,500       4,551.30            .00       1,948.70   70.0%
565600 531130  ATTORNEY AND LEGA                 2,500           0       2,500            .00            .00       2,500.00     .0%

https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=PHJrpZtW5Xh8cm9FSXIGhtXhGtkGWzGKkcSDf%2BJSjF7TqDE5ZOgx6288xOH2iPpy
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=sLbnbXSK0LGQpp%2FiM3t7eWswOaNRZ3xpoRYxpjrqz0KV9hrSfc7xDpf74InXGFiZ
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=PC%2FcfTmigKIiPF%2F0zy5crbuB%2FMhf9xlzpWqrIRpeXqmccS8N1p5%2BXiNR%2Fmugjr8Y
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=%2BaV2f%2BT9A1XHZo6u494W48ijxuPvKiG9bZk1PR%2FqOY8G95sC3nv39oNuVpuAA8NqEsPZr3hpg8ENC%2FwV5ri0PA%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ZJPwnbNGSBf90Fo8IE9k%2B%2BPtskcQni%2BY%2FXTAStlw%2FKchcDCaDaRTZffwPKhOHSPI5HxlVAPk76FYbEQSsrW7iw%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=4%2FGqEIPVGnvfQ4wzVWmC%2FB2vGK4VPlor9fTNZ21e3GhIDW7iaEs%2Bfj3QVnhtKPCA
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=kZ2p%2FLEfgURzA4en0pMPbiw3KKjRNlcEgVNDP14prqmJwKQ1whmWi2EZDdWp1vungmqQXUSGPg46Ke%2FjZA9MzA%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=AtPVPd9C51qqJ1PLmZeUY6TpfvM%2FcKDuJrExoD0madyfyRsQJWdHIie4jvNnC2Qwa9GwkZ8%2BnSeeCArDSrJGWQ%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=%2BMn3GhGNg3kKCzt9uoDOW55RBKkHVoPYIsryrHCNCz2x7jAAeqxUNqZyGgFynFCA
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=OQmYMr9%2FAvp7YV3zQlFPxVYBqUDSUwa6oRxcpKU0%2FGI6IetvL0Ek58sVIFTXjDNx
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=jhyD0YE9jKZCU4vYrMvmPxa1sHh7c0a3k%2F2AIRogxxmkGCW%2F2uwmfni5a4H1iCA2
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ux1CemVRhJ%2Bw8Beoe9sOdmsyqfJM9D%2B92Ro4mul0smQ7Hq%2BS2x4tEzAoRAvkAN9R


Bedford County, VA

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 04/26/2023 01:44
User:             pbailey
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      2

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2023 12

ACCOUNTS FOR:                                 ORIGINAL    TRANFRS/     REVISED                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
556      ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY        APPROP     ADJSTMTS      BUDGET     YTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

565600 531220 SAL ADMIN SALARY -                21,864           0      21,864            .00            .00      21,864.41     .0%
565600 531410  BUILDING REPAIR &               150,000           0     150,000            .00            .00     150,000.00     .0%
565600 531410 CVCC BUILDING REPA                     0           0           0       3,440.50            .00      -3,440.50  100.0%*
565600 531420  GROUNDS REPAIR &                      0           0           0         390.00            .00        -390.00  100.0%*
565600 531510  POSTAGE AND FREIG                   120           0         120            .00            .00         120.00     .0%
565600 531730  CONFERENCE & EDUC                 1,500           0       1,500         597.40            .00         902.60   39.8%
565600 531750  EMPLOYEE RECOGNIT                   100           0         100            .00            .00         100.00     .0%
565600 531820  TRAVEL MILEAGE                    1,200           0       1,200       1,025.56            .00         174.44   85.5%
565600 541270  CONTRIBUTIONS TO                  2,500           0       2,500            .00            .00       2,500.00     .0%
565600 551210  GENERAL LIABILITY                   653           0         653            .00            .00         653.00     .0%
565600 551220  AUTOMOBILE LIABIL                   150           0         150            .00            .00         150.00     .0%
565600 551230  PROPERTY INSURANC                 9,935           0       9,935            .00            .00       9,935.00     .0%
565600 551240  BOILER AND MACHIN                 1,170           0       1,170            .00            .00       1,170.00     .0%
565600 551250  OTHER FINANCIAL I                   675           0         675            .00            .00         675.00     .0%
565600 551260  PUBLIC OFFICIALS                    182           0         182            .00            .00         182.00     .0%
565600 551290  CYBER RISK INSURA                   100           0         100            .00            .00         100.00     .0%
565600 561140  FOOD & MEALS NON-                 2,300           0       2,300       1,566.12            .00         733.88   68.1%
565600 561140 BDONE BDONE-FOOD M                 1,200           0       1,200       1,416.61            .00        -216.61  118.1%*
565600 561140 BSAPP BSAPP-FOOD M                 2,500           0       2,500         495.33            .00       2,004.67   19.8%
565600 581680 CVCC CVCC-OTHER MI                     0           0           0       1,500.00            .00      -1,500.00  100.0%*

     TOTAL EDA ADMINISTRATION                  213,149           0     213,149      22,082.82            .00     191,066.59   10.4%

565610 EDA PERFORMANCE INCENTIVES         

565610 541530  PERFORMANCE INCEN               120,000           0     120,000            .00            .00     120,000.00     .0%

     TOTAL EDA PERFORMANCE INCENTIVES          120,000           0     120,000            .00            .00     120,000.00     .0%

565615 EDA BEDFORD CTR FOR BUSINESS       

565615 531410  BUILDING REPAIR &                 3,200           0       3,200            .00            .00       3,200.00     .0%
565615 531410 CVCC CVCC-BLDG REP                     0           0           0       5,359.72            .00      -5,359.72  100.0%*
565615 531420  GROUNDS REPAIR &                  8,900           0       8,900       5,758.40            .00       3,141.60   64.7%
565615 531420 CVCC GROUNDS REPAI                     0           0           0         350.00            .00        -350.00  100.0%*
565615 531430 CVCC CVCC - EQUIP                  6,500           0       6,500       7,272.39            .00        -772.39  111.9%*
565615 531430 ECOST ECOST - EQUI                 2,000           0       2,000            .00            .00       2,000.00     .0%
565615 531510 CVCC POSTAGE AND F                     0           0           0          15.00            .00         -15.00  100.0%*
565615 551110  ELECTRICAL SERVIC                     0           0           0      10,407.42            .00     -10,407.42  100.0%*
565615 551110 CVCC CVCC-ELECTRIC                40,000           0      40,000      22,797.47            .00      17,202.53   57.0%

https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=AMeA76J3%2FyOZbKulUUAFHezzmfn8Yr8nFzEr0sPg9EHaBNcesoT4Qh9nrGdWbg1W
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=feXGFr6%2BWQEarllaTPx99TbBFLXT47EQISckmjiAYj0oPNIP01xEagcrpEt3NHds
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=zFHO%2F%2FqotlJmgwm3PEfbHXCvhgWeWaj0eAMlXIdADYEz2I3MaIM%2Bf8rEkwT4WhrS7BhJJnp4jn5Xyo%2Bxv7Zncg%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=J39KArc39897MbaFFvQ4FBEKAGN6SmqiRUUb6a%2BE%2FiiqwN7A93ps2Jq1wDZlGdnv
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=NbQmkNScNzuAZntUqKKtITA4XrZfnPwoj7XrxR%2Bvv3Pb%2FSQtAyN4%2BD0Rzk4a6ODj
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=lZl%2FSZ1FeXdra1BeeCHkZwg0bUanMryRIGK0YycEXys787P4Lr4B3lHPkhy3N4kN
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=rjUw9Rt0cVNfrjgjFVy1%2BA%2BpN6XFEn7xNGLbxMj4d8rFZ9C3bgV6nA3jxpABJpxu
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Bv%2FoAHTGAWu2yyeFLqWR%2BiPseWKqAX7yyS96E3ph2UwvxtOoU6Yi5%2FZYcqNfeei6
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=XD0YA64Sg2OUOb%2BuDyOioIYXZKcBdv7OsMuB07UVmYjLwarJ0jNMKkW5GCix2UyE
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=YJi35uyycAn9pdF2M8RFljTKvhdOTKiIhukA4YMUfIa6JF1OfRnXA3ybCKvTyPFm
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=0qTNX0feq3%2BJZdS3O5fRV%2BpFc8E%2B8mhxt2U%2FfThrkdwrPJ6NgpsXkGY99aC0HnJJ
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=TGlvhHPBQqVmz8ShIWrpYmvzsxUxHuCbe6jdKgPwg1u%2F9Ye2rTHDtpUpCmj%2FooZ0
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=IJB8lQ1Pyu%2Fa7GJPRAAWDchuaPVyQELGi6bFjKxH5SYiw1aZQ8SqkovM0v8Q7oFU
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=mmQTh0f0Nkgr8AtrYoO4M9W9LmamLGeTgeyMYYyhtHBSWlW8PEm1pRiuyWS%2F8fTY
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=N3hmLgIEHjwfDrA8gTMWrLhEgIK9cUBVqF2YyFntbARavE9G9ygT2IjDeyFzUKbE
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=FTQoZLcJcxWaLAomDGjmtrlSjhHQ9jIKtEUkwlAu57s8ZnYpgBSyvmW3MQFr%2B7Qz
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=i8Dl1I4HU22KrtrSYv3SFfHJz6btj28NpJuRVoFHmMDvVDMsQ6rAqLQJPbXU5uWD
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=KoC9qrjoK%2BEQuZw8iQu6Y4qg9h01dhvqgE%2BNQns8UO1%2BApXEUcXvz4ZOIJuJ5LYwIEy3cW%2Fn4YRls2toURdPag%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=JKDiBr0lp3BE591pOyP6%2FYBDQuu9HmWU2Qqau4%2B3WLxbaIexNXQMnA6Khv2sAm1gHQl1E%2BWu9HuJm1BgG48kwA%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=DfDLEMLXjwcaEsRSLRtgmh5J%2FlfLNHw0tiBE8rZ5AvWmyc%2F%2FOmXrOzsVZAuKdtu1eeUJlvRkqolwT8cN5UA4qA%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=nvJRX0JI6Zj2HZ7fj%2BHvxZi011lm2lIX4lSQnZ2phhsD%2BTHjYqbpEYbmcJoJ8WN6
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=uIY2NFyqwgpO3J41oww1GOEDoziOGelKhfE28pUg0KHxqAVnaCEKIBWexjyUANt2
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=rrpP6TAuBqTUA6GnIPDYq%2BzzoMkwjreAobRJKEWsJBV3DorWai%2BKK79z%2B1%2BCNiUDareoB%2FB9%2FSo780VywQurzQ%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=y9c1seHjIA86Cy2rVtDvkasVtpWaB2VxWKCo8tKQGU1o%2BRiMMprr5kaYj6Yy1J2V
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=1t2dVzhExPgu%2BGP%2FznlEA2cckPimElyX7T8U6Pv228vDo%2B9A8t9VU%2F9aDQ95dA%2FxmKwxvFRftOv0X%2FLQxCskGw%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=lLLvMPMhejDE776r9NMlyUf2H%2FxHgbDegJY%2B8Eu5oJ5g4Gzgka%2FA8dkWjcHd5owd6wAS4iRxK6KU49EkEjqYPw%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=p3AcR9sHq8yhK28wd1GoYYEge72QbBeybDXUJEA4BsbiRJQtXKLWjvt81D2X1X0MQbieA1CeVccoKnA85HGzfA%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=evmED%2FxHEWw8ioWDPrrSoez%2B2gPfNtGBVp4A0ukNFYo%2Fnp8lpPATJdh2DE0R6u83%2F0V8zENQJwnB5htrqWQBaQ%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=VXM1KxOWfwCr9ydsWtNd%2Fmu2myXrHhWv9Il3g28AxZPSoFI1%2FdZMP6JdrbriE9Da
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=fzgnSNmTp%2FyFM2Z%2BOn1Urmtf4%2BvZntTX1pmvZ5athIvCgRk7xP%2BLLVKehDFo4QFEU3tuaxbcASK%2BI9PCHBVg6Q%3D%3D


Bedford County, VA

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 04/26/2023 01:44
User:             pbailey
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      3

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2023 12

ACCOUNTS FOR:                                 ORIGINAL    TRANFRS/     REVISED                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
556      ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY        APPROP     ADJSTMTS      BUDGET     YTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

565615 551130 CVCC CVCC-WATER &                  2,000           0       2,000       1,588.97            .00         411.03   79.4%
565615 551170  OTHER SERVICE CHA                     0           0           0         399.89            .00        -399.89  100.0%*
565615 561510 CVCC CVCC-BUILDING                     0           0           0          40.42            .00         -40.42  100.0%*

     TOTAL EDA BEDFORD CTR FOR BUSINESS         62,600           0      62,600      53,989.68            .00       8,610.32   86.2%

56561515 RENT                               

56561515 415201 CVCC PROPERTY RE              -142,296           0    -142,296            .00            .00    -142,296.00     .0%*
56561515 415201 ECOST PROPERTY R              -121,280           0    -121,280     -90,960.03            .00     -30,319.97   75.0%*
56561515 415201 MBC PROPERTY REN                -3,600           0      -3,600      -3,600.00            .00            .00  100.0%

     TOTAL RENT                               -267,176           0    -267,176     -94,560.03            .00    -172,615.97   35.4%

565621 EDA BEDFORD BREWERY                

565621 591130 VCC VCC-DEBT PRINC                13,035           0      13,035       9,201.14            .00       3,834.15   70.6%
565621 591140 VCC VCC-DEBT INTER                30,783           0      30,783      23,662.63            .00       7,120.44   76.9%

     TOTAL EDA BEDFORD BREWERY                  43,818           0      43,818      32,863.77            .00      10,954.59   75.0%

56562115 RENT                               

56562115 415201 BREW PROPERTY RE               -43,818           0     -43,818     -36,515.30            .00      -7,303.06   83.3%*

     TOTAL RENT                                -43,818           0     -43,818     -36,515.30            .00      -7,303.06   83.3%

565655 EDA MONTVALE CTR FOR COMMERCE      

565655 531420  GROUNDS REPAIR &                  1,125           0       1,125       1,170.00            .00         -45.00  104.0%*

     TOTAL EDA MONTVALE CTR FOR COMMERCE         1,125           0       1,125       1,170.00            .00         -45.00  104.0%

565680 EDA WASHINGTON STREET              

565680 531220  SKILLED SERVICES                      0           0           0         150.00            .00        -150.00  100.0%*

https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=a0f3pzoZqxLBlkMTCyEL7Egacc601dsvbrleSL0edQnSIfR0m3Ii6HF%2FSuBuI2z2%2FgdiWB33kaenk40Xfa5Oeg%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=tUgcV9sHvU7tFPN34s%2BRfQfk18SW8V4REG2q%2FArwuYpY4HTvdd83%2Bee7dS%2F08a3t
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=pQ7rIYw%2FG0xttRZq9qG9cnd3owzh3g5lm7CvCzAfxt%2B%2F2L2TV47D%2BAxiVg5%2FgOsQhqxSr0TDs5wiAsVUwK5szA%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ccVIK8WY0di7YvMUchcTKwzhTydCXWrYPUxtArH1He1x4LBH8CENU6EUQPh4KSXFSRUGCm%2BIeMM4CKI4bKXKNQ%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=rN0%2FMXH0KZp2Fxx5w2ndtEdZUCkn8tQIXoFtMVPCazHbozatR5H5PeqpJUcl3Vaw7GKQ%2B00Ggla1EwnaBdkKxQ%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=BhSFKwKtvIYz%2F2w9mkf%2BXaQh7Rh2gx9otubUJrp39ivU0KrP3wPZIjmw402r8Qic%2FghEQIhT6soJk876C0P6oQ%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=NsxW0Md6T75Y%2FkaIUyKy4IIgWo%2Bop2mk8vmvy8qIRAjBo6syDNOGjx0lu4RX1QTc
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=GzSNQWNsFwPGDfwGMy5my%2BSt%2Fzh0rgu3BpENNFDV871XJVWq%2BvVcKuQwPezTpxxg
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=%2FmN2uL977m0oRKFv1IcDvzEnTJMCclvc5eHeLqi8araVOp%2FoqX6iz1x6UKGd4Lcv2F7xLj8pSZzKD6Cb4WSjng%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=sq%2BuMWkA%2BHpzD8ZSTGdkNZw8GFtULjowzOC9yTf3dsW%2B7VK8LvqEVuJeGOkORDZR
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=86Uel%2BnB2gq8BGBwoq0G9cA3E9O9MmBkdR0kBxXf%2BeBnlCS0saSOIUT2IbL22HSx


Bedford County, VA

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 04/26/2023 01:44
User:             pbailey
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      4

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2023 12

ACCOUNTS FOR:                                 ORIGINAL    TRANFRS/     REVISED                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
556      ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY        APPROP     ADJSTMTS      BUDGET     YTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

565680 531410  BUILDING REPAIR &                10,000           0      10,000         350.00            .00       9,650.00    3.5%
565680 531420  GROUNDS REPAIR &                101,500           0     101,500       1,216.70            .00     100,283.30    1.2%
565680 561510  BUILDING MATERIAL                     0           0           0          52.98            .00         -52.98  100.0%*
565680 561510 VISTA VISTA-BUILDI                     0           0           0         370.84            .00        -370.84  100.0%*

     TOTAL EDA WASHINGTON STREET               111,500           0     111,500       2,140.52            .00     109,359.48    1.9%

56568015 WASHINGTON STREET RENT             

56568015 415201  PROPERTY RENTAL                     0           0           0     -25,500.00            .00      25,500.00  100.0%
56568015 415201 VISTA PROPERTY R               -30,600           0     -30,600            .00            .00     -30,600.00     .0%*

     TOTAL WASHINGTON STREET RENT              -30,600           0     -30,600     -25,500.00            .00      -5,100.00   83.3%

565685 EDA NEW LONDON                     

565685 531120  ADVERTISING SERVI                     0           0           0          17.99            .00         -17.99  100.0%*
565685 531210  A & E SERVICES                   20,000           0      20,000       2,010.00            .00      17,990.00   10.1%
565685 531220  SKILLED SERVICES                      0           0           0         750.00            .00        -750.00  100.0%*
565685 531410  BUILDING REPAIR &                     0           0           0       2,326.00            .00      -2,326.00  100.0%*
565685 531420  GROUNDS REPAIR &                 20,000           0      20,000      16,271.70            .00       3,728.30   81.4%
565685 551110  ELECTRICAL SERVIC                 7,100           0       7,100       5,476.02            .00       1,623.98   77.1%
565685 551170  OTHER SERVICE CHA                     0           0           0          42.22            .00         -42.22  100.0%*
565685 561570  SIGNAGE                           1,000           0       1,000            .00            .00       1,000.00     .0%
565685 582160 MEADE MEADE-ROADS                      0           0           0      26,465.83            .00     -26,465.83  100.0%*
565685 591130 LOT7 SHELL BLDG -                153,534           0     153,534      69,353.58            .00      84,180.30   45.2%
565685 591140 LOT7 SHELL BLDG -                      0           0           0      33,002.34            .00     -33,002.34  100.0%*

     TOTAL EDA NEW LONDON                      201,634           0     201,634     155,715.68            .00      45,918.20   77.2%

56568515 RENT                               

56568515 415201 BLVAC PROPERTY R              -260,000           0    -260,000    -216,670.70            .00     -43,329.30   83.3%*

     TOTAL RENT                               -260,000           0    -260,000    -216,670.70            .00     -43,329.30   83.3%

     TOTAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY      -16,712           0     -16,712    -126,827.86            .00     110,116.15  758.9%

                           TOTAL REVENUES     -770,538           0    -770,538    -394,790.33            .00    -375,748.03
                           TOTAL EXPENSES      753,827           0     753,827     267,962.47            .00     485,864.18

https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Ufp%2Fz%2BFa1Krb83jtdoglx2upgwIE4zHtv%2BJEZzgDoj6I%2FTt8yM7Yd3UT6Vcpeznm
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=0EQ%2BtS22B0yHALMk75iQmGYDx1Upf7wEcPeCivcAdO8KhbSO1zIsDllSzSAyo%2FVf
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=qRCpqJF4UauBO4UuQaocmlWLD9KrbdEQu6dtRNO8ip%2BD6Ke1f%2Fon5gOVKEtiSRuK
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=dqechX7%2BzCKWSXVvySXfLoawbjwKjXUTtR7z0g6vzSXC6BO14tvandDNd3lfNEXW0Zhn%2F1YTLbSUL6exhhCLtA%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=%2Fhxw5GdI72Eue9YcASgQRfrl7dShQH3qBofUW%2BlpegHe5GJ5RxKaYfd1hfHGHGQo
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=l2%2Ftn5u2q8HsqT7t1NaFhZJwLT5MPzx2q%2Bl2N341aJ5cyFPk3aaLHlUe0ibAs4F%2BOHGqOLu8qwVjaX2R3jERjg%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=p8dgdPYB6f2%2FhXggfWtfP4mMFjygwXxLXu6fQUQBPy4NITRYaJeA99T6YghBRbxP
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=3BkmYFepz82wTX3%2Bpu%2BiEfhybR1dIB7vMucDvqfoi4NactWNu%2B7ownWlzA1t79ux
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=a7562TIPl4kEenBJ3RwN8Vhrz%2FyNVZq0yXPZ1m4DrAikLDT5jk4DdPA6rScvYV85
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=5psCMts6ZJV8rR7CTDRhHZjtLnAsYHKdvS%2BJkHxkb6aZhhqi7SnMSNsxvjtFbESd
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=KVidxsSxep4x6XBuLJQIyAMQ8QoRpuD60LMC57ztt4zSipffOazVpV5McgXgXFUC
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=0wknpQJBdgve86mFcKkWJJKgftPyqdeMkX0J2fNoQp7Bgubaro7%2FrDsZCn3FetXj
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=2mIDTt87P0WhJsKBpUIj8zlCVlmknHq33R7hz%2F9uKE0exYl3u8B0cUPioupnC%2Fd3
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=0%2BKYcwAFq9vCvNpMQILThiFlW6xNd6I%2BRPl%2FdKsFntn8km7wYnalft1nO5%2BAyYxp
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=pkTkRBa0BlHN7TSz1TadXfGxdOmnZSTZua5t6ANxqXBuZZY0ED7eDOqVBg4hhnUAZKcVVVl0RfIIkU8FIMovKw%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=o6navcfw1LOtgYZ8c1Xw9cUf6x1lpgvy314uyaG3%2BVn%2BNTYtabg1u8ZJKD0p56Fmv6FQEylTuN1D0GjDGwpxBg%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=clbO8RoPsTxaLZ9B82U6ckfaLypxmnfW8cCJZ%2Bv38nGlkGBQmOOM7FPPR%2BludXcY8%2BzDcoN8dhhkZ89ikxL7Mg%3D%3D
https://munisapp.bedfordcountyva.gov/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=%2BdRCdjOybqueyWiv%2FEv4PQmqGdZ8G2TAmkpZcYAhRT0UPprtxRB1%2F7dhUuKQ4Fns0BzKTD5hkeIBOKfaNhPhTw%3D%3D


Bedford County, VA

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 04/26/2023 01:44
User:             pbailey
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      5

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2023 12

                                              ORIGINAL    TRANFRS/     REVISED                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
                                               APPROP     ADJSTMTS      BUDGET     YTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

                              GRAND TOTAL      -16,712           0     -16,712    -126,827.86            .00     110,116.15  758.9%

                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Pam Bailey **                                            



Bedford County, VA

BALANCE SHEET FOR 2023 13

Report generated: 04/26/2023 01:45
User:             pbailey
Program ID:       glbalsht

Page      1

                                                                           NET CHANGE              ACCOUNT
FUND: 556  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY                                  FOR PERIOD              BALANCE 

ASSETS
             556      110010       EQUITY IN GENERAL CHECKING                     .00         1,945,056.96
             556      120100       BRWA CELL TOWER FUND                           .00            29,647.72
             556      142100       OTHER RECEIVABLES                              .00            15,206.67
             556      145700 BEALE NOTES RECEIVABLE                               .00           646,607.86
             556      145700 DMPRE DAMAGE PREVENTION - NOTES REC                  .00            90,225.00
             556      145800       LEASE RECEIVABLE                               .00         4,600,434.52
             556      181000       LAND                                           .00           612,789.56
             556      181100       BLDG & LAND HELD FOR RESALE                    .00         8,370,768.53
             556      181200       LAND HELD FOR LEASE                            .00            42,628.07
             556      183000       BUILDINGS & IMPROVEMENTS                       .00         8,857,517.45
             556      184000       MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT                          .00            18,253.99
             556      189300       ACC DEPR-BUILDINGS & IMPROV                    .00        -3,882,418.76
             556      189400       ACC DEPR-MACHINERY & EQUIP                     .00           -11,926.89
                   TOTAL ASSETS                                                   .00        21,334,790.68 
LIABILITIES                                                                                                
             556      220300       ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                               .00           -11,966.06
             556      220600       PERFORMANCE GRANTS PAYABLE                     .00          -520,225.00
             556      281000 LOT7  SHELL BUILDING - NOTES PAYABLE                 .00        -1,871,598.06
             556      281000 VCC   NOTES PAYABLE                                  .00          -645,001.23
             556      293000       DEFERRED REVENUE UNEARNED                      .00          -160,052.67
             556      298140       DIR-LEASES                                     .00        -4,543,208.21
                   TOTAL LIABILITIES                                              .00        -7,752,051.23 
FUND BALANCE                                                                                               
             556      330000       FUND BALANCE-UNASSIGNED                        .00       -13,453,189.92
             556      340000       REVENUE CONTROL                                .00          -394,790.33
             556      350000       EXPENDITURE CONTROL                            .00           267,962.47
             556      392035       P-CARD CONTROL                                 .00            -2,721.67
             556      393000       BUDGETARY FD BAL-UNASSIGNED                    .00           -16,711.71
             556      394000       ESTIMATED REVENUE CONTROL                      .00           770,538.36
             556      395000       APPROPRIATION CONTROL                          .00          -753,826.65
                   TOTAL FUND BALANCE                                             .00       -13,582,739.45 
         TOTAL LIABILITIES + FUND BALANCE                                         .00       -21,334,790.68 

                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Pam Bailey **                                            



















































YTD - March 22, 2023 EDA Budget 2023-24 DRAFT EDA Agenda Item #5A

General and Administrative YTD (as of 3/22/23) BUDGET BUDGET

Revenues FY 22-23 FY 22-23 FY 23-24 Notes

Contribution from County 43,055.00$          43,055.00$         43,055.00$         564100-441110

Interest Earnings -$                     -$                    -$                    561500-415101

-$                    -$                    

Totals 43,055.00$          43,055.00$         43,055.00$         

Expenditures

Administrative Assistant -$                     21,864.41$         23,000.00$         565600-531220-SAL

Auditing Services 7,100.00$            8,000.00$           8,000.00$           565600-531110

Advertising Services 2,499.29$            6,500.00$           6,500.00$           web maintenance & ads 565600-531120

Attorney Services -$                     2,500.00$           2,500.00$           565600-531130

Postage and Freight -$                     120.00$              120.00$              mailings to prospects/bus. 565600-531510

Printing Services -$                     -$                    500.00$              name plates/badges/etc. 565600-561120

Conference & Educations Svcs 597.40$               1,500.00$           1,500.00$           VEDA, fees for training 565600-531730

Business/EDA Recognition -$                     100.00$              100.00$              Outgoing EDA/staff recognition 565600-531750

Travel Mileage 1,200.00$           1,500.00$           EDA official bus./ meetings 565600-531820

Food & Meals - Non-travel 1,355.22$            2,300.00$           2,300.00$           EDA meetings/planning 565600-561140

Bedford One 1,223.30$            1,200.00$           3,000.00$           Student food 565600-561140-BDONE

Business Appreciation 495.33$               2,500.00$           2,500.00$           Thank you gifts, event, etc. 565600-561140-BSAPP

General Liability Insurance 653.00$              332.00$              565600-551210

Surety Bonds 675.00$              675.00$              565600-551250

Cyber Risk Insurance 100.00$              100.00$              565600-551290

Public Officials Liability 182.00$              182.00$              565600-551260

Automobile Liability 150.00$              150.00$              565600-551220

Property Insurance 9,935.00$           10,270.00$         Elba, CVCC and Shell bldg. 565600-551230

Equipment Breakdown 1,170.00$           1,264.00$           Boiler and Machinery 565600 -551240

Excess Liability (automobile & general) 322.00$              322.00$              565600-551210

Rate Credit (252.00)$             

Building Repair & Maintenance Fund 150,000.00$       120,000.00$       Emergency maintenance items 565600-531410

Totals 13,270.54$          210,971.41$       184,563.00$       

 Net Totals 29,784.46$          (167,916.41)$      (141,508.00)$      



YTD - March 22, 2023 EDA Budget 2023-24 DRAFT EDA Agenda Item #5A

Performanced Based Incentives YTD (as of 3/22/23) BUDGET BUDGET

Revenues FY 22-23 FY 22-23 FY 23-24

Contribution from County 120,000.00$        120,000.00$       120,000.00$       564100-441110

Totals 120,000.00$        120,000.00$       120,000.00$       

Expenditures

-$                     $120,000.00 $120,000.00

565610-541530

Totals -$                     120,000.00$       120,000.00$       

Net Totals 120,000.00$        -$                    -$                    

Bedford Brewery YTD (as of 3/22/23) BUDGET BUDGET

Revenues FY 22-23 FY 22-23 FY 23-24

Bedford Brewing lease 32,863.77$          $43,818.36 $43,818.36 Rental income 56562115-415201-BREW

Totals 32,863.77$          $43,818.36 $43,818.36

Expenditures

VCC Principal 6,989.06$            13,035.29$         13,035.29$         565621-591130-VCC

VCC Interest 18,571.65$          30,783.07$         30,783.07$         565621-591140-VCC

Totals 25,560.71$          43,818.36$         43,818.36$         Loan payments

Net Total 7,303.06$            -$                    -$                    



YTD - March 22, 2023 EDA Budget 2023-24 DRAFT EDA Agenda Item #5A

Bedford Center for Business YTD (as of 3/22/23) BUDGET BUDGET

Revenues FY 22-23 FY 22-23 FY 23-24

CVCC lease 142,296.00$        142,296.00$       142,296.00$       Rental income 56561515-415201-CVCC

East Coast Fabricators lease 80,853.36$          121,280.00$       121,280.00$       Rental income 56561515-415201-ECOST

Mid-Atlantic Broadband lease 3,600.00$            3,600.00$           3,600.00$           Rental income 56561515-415201-MBC

Totals 226,749.36$        267,176.00$       267,176.00$       

Expenditures

Electric 29,985.49$          40,000.00$         40,000.00$         CVCC electric 565615-551110-CVCC

Water & Sewer 1,442.60$            2,000.00$           2,000.00$           CVCC water and sewer 565615-551130-CVCC

Building Repair & Maintenance 8,243.97$            3,200.00$           3,200.00$           

 Security, sprinkler, 

exterminating services 565615-531410

Grounds Maintenance Service 5,275.06$            8,900.00$           8,900.00$           Peaksview landscaping 565615-531420

Equipment Repair - CVCC 9,177.81$            6,500.00$           9,000.00$           HVAC service + plumbing565615-531430 - CVCC

Equipment Repair - East Coast 2,000.00$           2,000.00$           HVAC service 565615-531430 - Ecost

Totals 54,124.93$          62,600.00$         65,100.00$         

Net Totals 172,624.43$        204,576.00$       202,076.00$       

Montvale Center for Commerce YTD (as of 3/22/23) BUDGET BUDGET

Revenues FY 22-23 FY 22-23 FY 23-24

Totals -$                     -$                    -$                    

Expenditures

Advertising/Marketing -$                     -$                    -$                    565655-531120
Grounds Maintenance Service 1,560.00$            1,125.00$           1,600.00$           Mowing/bushhogging 565655-531420

Totals 1,560.00$            1,125.00$           1,600.00$           

Net Total (1,560.00)$           (1,125.00)$          (1,600.00)$          



YTD - March 22, 2023 EDA Budget 2023-24 DRAFT EDA Agenda Item #5A

New London Business and Tech YTD (as of 3/22/23) BUDGET BUDGET

Revenues FY 22-23 FY 22-23 FY 23-24

VEDP - VBRSP grant 63,750.00$         56568515-415201-BLVAC

Belvac Lease payments 196,451.62$        260,000.00$       260,000.00$       Rental income 56568515-415201-BLVAC

Recovered Costs CAM fees -$                     

Simplimatic fees: 1,061.00$            1,061.00$           1,061.00$           561900-419010-SMPLM

Liberty University fees: -$                     2,597.00$           2,597.00$           561900-419010-LU

Nanotouch fees: -$                     393.00$              393.00$              561900-419010-NANO

Belvac fees 1,447.59$            1,447.59$           1,447.59$           

Damage Prevention fees -$                     390.41$              390.41$              

Totals 198,960.21$        265,889.00$       329,639.00$       

Expenditures

A & E 2,760.00$            20,000.00$         127,500.00$       Phase 2 Engineering services 565685-531210

Grounds Maintenance Service 14,777.53$          20,000.00$         20,000.00$         Peaksview landscaping 565685-531420

Building Repair & Maintenance 2,326.00$            -$                    3,102.00$           Johnson Controls

Electrical Service 5,518.24$            7,100.00$           7,100.00$           SEC charges 565685-551110

Water & Sewer -$                     -$                    -$                    565685-551130

Signage -$                     1,000.00$           real estate signs 565685-561570

Bank of James Interest 24,560.06$          565685-591140-LOT7

Bank of James Principal 52,206.88$          565685-591130-LOT7

Bank of the James Loan 153,533.88$       153,533.88$       565685-591130-LOT7

Totals 102,148.71$        201,633.88$       311,235.88$       

Net Totals 96,811.50$          64,255.12$         18,403.12$         



YTD - March 22, 2023 EDA Budget 2023-24 DRAFT EDA Agenda Item #5A

Washington Street Property YTD (as of 3/22/23) BUDGET BUDGET

Revenues FY 22-23 FY 22-23 FY 23-24

Elba Butcher Shoppe 20,400.00$          30,600.00$         30,600.00$         Rental income 56568015-415201

Totals 20,400.00$          30,600.00$         30,600.00$         

Expenditures

Grounds Maintenance Service 1,095.03$            1,500.00$           1,500.00$           landscaping 565680-531420

Building repair and maintenance 734.12$               10,000.00$         7,500.00$           HVAC/roof repair/plumbing 565680-531410

Parking lot paving, etc. 150.00$               100,000.00$       250,000.00$       565680-531410

Totals 1,979.15$            111,500.00$       259,000.00$       

Net Totals 18,420.85$          (80,900.00)$        (228,400.00)$      

Grand Totals YTD (as of 3/22/23) BUDGET BUDGET

FY 22-23 FY 22-23 FY 23-24

Revenue 522,028.34$        770,538.36$       834,288.36$       

Expenditure 198,644.04$        751,648.65$       985,317.24$       

Revenue over/(under) expenditures 323,384.30$        18,889.71$         (151,028.88)$      



BEDFORD COUNTY EDA 

ACTION ITEM MEMO 

 

 

ITEM # 11A: Elba Parking Lot Paving IFB 

DATE:  May 4, 2023  

 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

At the request of the EDA at the April 2023 meeting, staff has prepared an Invitation for Bid for the paving and 

striping of the Elba Parking lot. Staff has met with Mr. Dawson and he is happy with the new configuration and 

will work with his suppliers to communicate the plan and timeline 

POSSIBLE EDA ACTION FOR CONSIDERATION: 

Determine the due date and approve the document as submitted. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



    

1 

ELBA BUTCHER SHOPPE PARKING LOT 

INVITATION FOR BIDs (IFB) 

 

 

Issue Date: March 7, 2023       

 

Title:  Elba Butcher Shoppe Parking Lot  

 

Issued By: Bedford County Economic Development Authority  

  County Administration Building 

  122 East Main Street, Suite 210 

  Bedford, VA  24523 

 

Place of Performance:  Elba Butcher Shoppe, 212 East Washington, Bedford, VA 24523 

 

Sealed Bids Will Be Received Until 3:00 p.m., April 1 2023 For Furnishing the Services Described Herein.  

Bids shall be received via email at dcoffman@bedfordcountyva.gov. 

 

Period of Contract: within 75 days of notice to proceed. 

 

Site visits can be scheduled by contacting Doug Coffman using the contact information below: 

 

All Inquiries For Information Should Be Directed To: Doug Coffman, Public Works Director, Phone: (540) 

586-7601x1392 , E-mail: dcoffman@bedfordcountyva.gov 
 

IF BIDS ARE MAILED, SEND DIRECTLY TO ISSUING DEPARTMENT SHOWN ABOVE, IF BIDS ARE HAND 

DELIVERED, DELIVER TO:   

 

Bedford County Administration Office 

122 East Main Street, Suite 202 

Bedford, VA  24523 

 

Bidders are encouraged to conduct site inspections prior to the submission of their bid.  
  

ATTENTION ALL BIDDERS: FOR CONDITIONS OF BIDDING, INCLUDING INSTRUCTIONS  

REGARDING BID SUBMISSIONS, PLEASE REFER TO GENERAL CONDITIONS AND INSTRUCTIONS 

TO BIDDERS.  

 

IF YOU NEED ANY REASONABLE ACCOMODATION FOR ANY TYPE OF DISABILITY IN ORDER TO 

PARTICIPATE IN THIS PROCUREMENT, PLEASE CONTACT THIS DIVISION AS SOON AS POSSIBLE.  
 

BIDDERS ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY AND ALL ADDENDA ASSOCIATED WITH  

THE SOLICITATION.  SEE THE WEBSITE BELOW FOR ADDENDA. 

 

https://www.bedfordcountyva.gov/about-bedford/administration/procurement/rfp 

 

 

 

 
  

mailto:dcoffman@bedfordcountyva.gov
mailto:dcoffman@bedfordcountyva.gov
https://www.bedfordcountyva.gov/about-bedford/administration/procurement/rfp


    

2 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

DESCRIPTION       PAGE NUMBER 

 

1.0 PURPOSE        3 

 

2.0 SCOPE OF WORK       3 

 

3.0 MANDATORY PRE-BID CONFERENCE    6 

 

4.0 SUBMISSION OF BIDS      6 

 

5.0 EVALUATION AND AWARD      7  

  

6.0 CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION     8 

 

7.0 CONTRACT PERIOD       8 

 

8.0 PRICING AND PRICE ADJUSTMENTS    8 

 

9.0 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS     9 

 

10.0 METHOD OF ORDERING/INVOICING/PAYMENT   9 

 

11.0 STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION    10 

 

 GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS     11 

 

 SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS    20  

 

*CONTRACTOR DATA SHEET      22 

 

 *BID FORM         24 

 

 *INSURANCE CHECKLIST      26 

  

 *STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION FORM   27 

 

  

     

 

* RETURN THESE PAGES 



    

3 

1.0 PURPOSE 

The purpose and intent of this Invitation for Bid is to establish a firm fixed price contract 

with one qualified Contractor(s) to provide paving services as shown on the drawings by 

Hurt & Proffitt and as described in these bid documents.  This solicitation is issued by the 

Bedford County Economic Development Authority. 

 

2.0 SCOPE OF WORK 

The Contractor shall provide all equipment, resources and qualified personnel required to 

perform improvements as listed below:  

 

2. A.    General Requirements:  

2.A.1  The contractor shall provide all labor and materials in order to prepare and pave the 

parking lot located at 212 East Washington Street, Bedford VA. 

 2.A.2  The contractor shall re-stripe all areas within the boundaries of work whether or not 

it is specifically shown on the drawings.  New striping will be in the same location 

as existing striping if not indicated. 

2.A.3  Mill concrete tie-ins to allow for smooth transitions. 

2.A.4  Mill entire east side of building, apply levelling course throughout to mitigate and 

smooth final product, apply 2” of overlay throughout. 

 

2.B. Contractor Equipment and Personnel: The Contractor shall provide all equipment, 

skilled labor, and materials to perform the above scope of work in a professional, 

first class manner.   

 

2.B.1 Unless specifically approved by Owner, sub-contractors are not acceptable to 

provide services awarded through this contract; all services must be provided by the 

Contractor and the Contractor’s employees.  Contractor personnel must be aware of 

the safety of the public at all times during operations, adhering to all federal, state, 

and local safety laws. The Contractor shall assume all on-the-job responsibilities for 

the actions of Contractor’s personnel.  

   

 

4.0 SUBMISSION OF BIDS 

4. A  Bidders are reminded to return all required forms/documents when submitting 

their bid. 

Checklist: 

1) Bid Form 

2) State Corporation Commission Form 

3) Contractor’s Data Sheet 

4) Insurance Checklist 

 

4. B  All bids shall be submitted in a sealed envelope or package with the bid title and 

the bidder’s name and address on the outside of such envelope or package. 

 

4. C Bids received after the due date/time will not be considered for contract award and 

will be returned to the Bidder. 



    

4 

 

4.D All questions pertaining to this solicitation must be received by the Buyer indicated 

on page one (1) of this solicitation, no later than five (5) business days prior to the 

date set for the bid opening. 

 

4. E Bidders are reminded that changes to the bid, in the form of addenda are often issued 

between the issue date and within three (3) days before the due date.  

 

It is the responsibility of the Bidder to monitor for issued addenda. 

Acknowledge all addenda on the Bid Form. 

5.0 EVALUATION AND AWARD 

5. A Bid Prices: Bidders shall price turn-key installation. Failure to return completed 

bid forms properly may result in the Bidder being determined non-responsive. 

Bidders are reminded to return all applicable forms with “Return This Page” 

on the page bottom, to be considered responsive.  

 

  

5. B Evaluation and Award: Award(s) will be made to the lowest responsive and 

responsible bidder on the basis of the price. Therefore, the Owner shall award to one 

Contractor.  The Owner reserves the right to conduct any test it may deem advisable 

to make all evaluations. The Owner reserves the right to reject any bids, in whole or 

in part, to waive informalities and to delete items prior to making the award, 

whenever it is deemed in the sole opinion of the procuring public body to be in its 

sole interest. 

6.0 CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION 

The successful administration of this contract will require close coordination of the 

Contractor and the Owner’s representative(s).  Unless otherwise authorized by the Owner, 

all work, including site access, shall be coordinated and scheduled with the designated 

Owner representative. The Owner’s representative has the authority to monitor contract 

performance in accordance with the provisions of the contract. They shall report any 

problems or deviations observed which may violate the provisions of the contract to the 

Owner’s representative. The Owner’s representative will determine the amount, quality, 

acceptability, and fitness in all aspects of the work and shall decide all other questions in 

connection with the work. Any modifications made to the contract must be authorized by 

the Owner issued as a written amendment to the Contract. 

 

7.0 CONTRACT PERIOD 

The work under this contract must be performed within 75 days of Notice to Proceed. 

 

8.0 PRICING AND PRICE ADJUSTMENTS 

The Contractor warrants that the prices stated herein shall remain firm for a period of not 

less than sixty (60) days from the opening of the bids.  

 

9.0 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 



    

5 

By signing and submitting a bid under this solicitation, the Bidder certifies that if 

awarded the contract, it will have the insurance coverage required in the Insurance 

Checklist at the time of award.  The Owner requires the Bidder to furnish a compliant 

Certificate of Insurance within five business days of request. The Bidder further 

certifies that the Contractor will maintain the specified coverage during the entire 

term of the contract and that insurance companies will provide all insurance coverage 

authorized to sell insurance in Virginia by the Virginia State Corporation 

Commission. 

 

10.0 METHOD OF ORDERING/ INVOICING/PAYMENT 

10. A  Ordering: The Contractor shall accept Owner’s representative written approval as 

the approved method of ordering services after Owner and Contractor confirm scope 

of work, and Contractor dollar amount (may be stated as a “not to exceed” dollar 

amount). The Contractor shall not perform any work that has not been authorized by 

the Owner’s representative. The Contractor assumes all risks and financial liability 

for any services rendered without such proper authorization.  

 

10. B Invoicing: Contractor will be paid in accordance with invoice(s) submitted. 

Contractor shall submit a monthly statement, which shall include the following: the 

contract number, purchase order number, description of services rendered including 

date and location of services, amount due per location, and total amount due.  

Invoices shall be submitted to the Bill to address as specified on the Owner’s 

purchase order.   

 

10. B.1 Monthly Reporting Requirement: Due to the largely unsupervised nature of 

this contract by the Owner, Contractor shall submit a monthly report with 

their monthly invoice. Failure to submit this monthly report may result in 

delay of payment to the Contractor. With the submission of each monthly 

invoice, the Contractor will submit a monthly report detailing any issues, 

concerns, or other pertinent information and the responsible Contractor’s 

supervisor who was on site. Payment of invoices is dependent on this report.  

 

10. B.2 Repairing Damages to Property: In the event that Owner’s grounds, fences, 

equipment, or other property is damaged as a result of Contractor, Contractor 

shall repair such damage to the Owner’s satisfaction, at the Contractor’s 

expense. Contractor shall report any damages within forty-eight (48) hours. 

The Contractor shall repair any damage within thirty days notification by the 

Owner. Failure to repair damages will result in deduction of payment, based 

on fair and reasonable quotations for repairs as obtained by the Owner, from 

subsequent Contractor invoices.  

 

10. C Payment: Owner will make payment within thirty (30) days of receipt of accurate 

and complete invoice. 

 

11.0 STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION 



    

6 

All bids shall include the identification number issued by the State Corporation Commission 

as proof of registration or justification for non-registration per the requirements in paragraph 

45 of the General Conditions and Instructions to Bidders. Use the form provided to furnish 

the State Corporation Commission Identification Number or justification for non-

registration. The SCC may be reached at (804) 371-9733 or at 

www.scc.virginia.gov/default.aspx. Failure to include this form with the sealed bid 

submission may result in rejection of the bid.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



    

7 

 

 

 

GENERAL TERMS, CONDITIONS AND INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS/OFFERORS 

GENERAL CONDITIONS AND INSTRUCTIONS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICE CONTRACTS 

 

Firm:  These general rules and conditions shall apply to all purchases and be a part of each solicitation and every 

contract awarded by Bedford County.  The term “Owner” as used herein refers to the contracting entity which is the 

signatory on the contract.  Offeror or their authorized representatives are expected to inform themselves fully as to the 

conditions, requirements, and specifications before submitting proposals: failure to do so will be at the offeror’s own 

risk and except as provided by law, relief cannot be secured on the plea of error. 

 

Subject to all Federal, State and local laws, policies, resolutions, regulations, rules, limitations and legislation, 

proposals on all solicitations issued by the Owner will bind offerors to applicable conditions and requirements herein 

set forth unless otherwise specified in the solicitation. 

 

 
1. AUTHORITY-The Director of the Public Works Department or designee has the sole responsibility and authority for negotiating, 

placing and when necessary modifying every solicitation, contract and task order issued by the Owner.  Unless specifically 
delegated by the Director, no other Owner officer or employee is authorized to order supplies or services, enter into purchase 
negotiations or contracts, or in any way obligate the Owner for an indebtedness.  Any agreement or contract made which is contrary 
to these provisions and authorities shall be of no effect and void and the Owner shall not be bound thereby. 

 
2. COMPETITION INTENDED:  It is the Owner’s intent that this solicitation permit competition.  It shall be the Offeror’s responsibility 

to advise the Director in writing if any language, requirement, specification, etc., or any combination thereof, stifles competition or 
inadvertently restricts or limits the requirements stated in this solicitation to a single source.  The Director must receive such 
notification not later than five (5) business days prior to the deadline set for acceptance of the proposals. 

 
CONDITIONS OF BIDDING 

 
3. CLARIFICATION OF TERMS - If any Offeror has questions about the specifications or other solicitation documents, the 

prospective Offeror should contact the contact whose name appears on the face of the solicitation no later than five (5) business 
days prior to the date set for receipt of proposals.  Any revisions to the solicitation will be made only by addendum issued by the 
Owner.  Notifications regarding specifications may not be considered if received in less than five (5) business days of the date set 
for receipt of proposals.  

 
4. MANDATORY USE OF OWNER FORM AND TERMS AND CONDITIONS: Failure to submit a proposal on the official Owner form 

provided for that purpose shall be a cause for rejection of the proposal.  Unauthorized modification of or additions to any portion of 
the Request for Proposal may be cause for rejection of the proposal.  However, the Owner reserves the right to decide, on a case 
by case basis, in its sole discretion, whether to reject any proposal which has been modified. 

 
5. LATE PROPOSALS & MODIFICATION OF PROPOSALS:  
 

Any proposal/modification received at the office designated in the solicitation after the exact time specified for receipt of the 
proposal/modification is considered a late proposal/modification. 
 
The Owner is not responsible for delays in the delivery of the mail by the U.S. Postal Service, private carriers or the inter-office 
mail system.  It is the sole responsibility of the Bidder/Offeror to ensure their bid/proposal reaches the Owner by the designated 
date and hour at the County Administration Office. 
 
a. The official time used in the receipt of proposals is that time in the County Administration Office.   
b. Late proposals/modifications will be returned to the Offeror UNOPENED, if solicitation number, acceptance date and Offeror’s 

return address is shown on the container. 
c. If the Owner closes its offices due to inclement weather scheduled receipt of proposals will be extended to the next business 

day, same time.   
 

6. WITHDRAWAL OF BIDS/PROPOSALS: 
A Bidder/Offeror for a contract other than for public construction may request withdrawal of his or her bid/proposal under the 
following circumstances: 
 
a. Bids/Proposals may be withdrawn on written request from the Bidder/Offeror received at the address shown in the solicitation 

prior to the time of acceptance. 
b. Requests for withdrawal of bids/proposals after opening of such bids/proposals but prior to award shall be transmitted to the 

Owner, in writing, accompanied by full documentation supporting the request.  If the request is based on a claim of error, 



    

8 

documentation must show the basis of the error.  Such documentation may take the form of supplier quotations, vendor work 
sheets, etc.  If bid bonds were tendered with the bid, the Owner may exercise its right of collection. 

 
No Bid/Proposal may be withdrawn under this paragraph when the result would be the awarding of the contract on another 
Bid/Proposal of the same bidder/offeror or of another bidder/offeror in which the ownership of the withdrawing bidder/offeror is 
more than five percent.  In the case of Invitation for Bid’s, if a bid is withdrawn under the authority of this paragraph, the lowest 
remaining bid shall be deemed to be the low bid.  No bidder/offeror that is permitted to withdraw a bid/proposal shall, for 
compensation, supply any material or labor to or perform any subcontract or other work agreement for the person or firm to whom 
the contract is awarded or otherwise benefit, directly or indirectly, from the performance of the project for which the withdrawn 
bid/proposal was submitted.  

 
7. IDENTIFICATION OF PROPOSAL ENVELOPE:  The signed proposal and requested copies should be returned in a separate 

envelope or package, sealed and identified with the following information: 
 
ADDRESSED AS INDICATED ON PAGE 1; RFP NUMBER & TITLE 
PROPOSAL DUE DATE AND TIME; FIRM NAME AND COMPLETE MAILING ADDRESS (RETURN ADDRESS) 

 
If a proposal is not addressed with the information as shown above, the Offeror takes the risk that the envelope may be inadvertently 
opened and the information compromised, which may cause the proposal to be disqualified.  Proposals may be hand delivered to 
the designated location in the office issuing the solicitation.  No other correspondence or other proposals should be placed in the 
envelope.  
 

8. ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSALS: Unless otherwise specified, all formal proposals submitted shall be valid for a minimum period 
of one hundred twenty (120) calendar days following the date established for acceptance.  At the end of the one hundred twenty 
(120) calendar days the proposal may be withdrawn at the written request of the Offeror.  If the proposal is not withdrawn at that 
time it remains in effect until an award is made or the solicitation is canceled. 

 
9. OFFEROR’S PRESENT: At the time fixed for the receipt of responses for Request for Proposals, only the names of the offerors 

will be read and made available to the public.   
 
10. RESPONSE TO SOLICITATIONS: In the event a Firm cannot submit a proposal on a solicitation, the Firm is requested to return 

the solicitation cover sheet with an explanation as to why the vendor is unable to submit a proposal.   
 
11. DEBARMENT STATUS: By submitting their proposals, Offerors certify that they are not currently debarred from submitting 

bids/proposals on contracts by the Owner, nor are they an agent of any person or entity that is currently debarred from submitting 
bids or proposals on contracts by the Owner or any agency, public entity/locality or authority of the Commonwealth of Virginia.   

 
12. ETHICS IN PUBLIC CONTRACTING: The provisions contained in Sections 2.2-4367 through 2.2-4377 of the Virginia Public 

Procurement Act as set forth in the 1950 Code of Virginia, as amended, shall be applicable to all contracts solicited or entered into 
by the Owner.  By submitting their bids/proposals, all Bidders/Offerors certify that their bids/proposals are made without collusion 
or fraud and that they have not offered or received any kickbacks or inducements from any other Bidder, Offeror, supplier, 
manufacturer or subcontractor in connection with their bid/proposal, and that they have not conferred on any public employee 
having official responsibility for this procurement transaction any payment, loan, subscription, advance, deposit of money, services 
or anything of more than nominal value, present or promised, unless consideration of substantially equal or greater value was 
exchanged. 

 
13. NO CONTACT POLICY: No Offeror shall initiate or otherwise have contact related to the solicitation with any Owner representative 

or employee, other than the Director (or designee), after the date and time established for receipt of proposals.  Any contact initiated 
by an Offeror with any Owner representative, other than the Director (or designee), concerning this solicitation is prohibited and 
may cause the disqualification of the Offeror from this procurement process. 

 
14. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: The Offeror certifies that to the best of its knowledge no employee of the Owner nor any member 

thereof, nor any public agency or official affected by the proposal, has a pecuniary interest in the business of the Offeror, and that 
no person associated with the Offeror has any interest that would conflict in any manner with the performance of the proposal. 

 
GENERAL POLICIES FOR ARCHITECTURAL/ENGINEERING SERVICES 

 
15. LICENSE/REGISTRATION: Entities (e.g., individuals, partnerships, or corporations) offering to provide architectural and/or 

engineering services shall be properly registered and licensed in Virginia as required by the Department of Professional and 
Occupational Regulation and, if incorporated, the State Corporation Commission. The architect or engineer in charge of each 
discipline shall be currently licensed in the Commonwealth of Virginia and shall affix his or her seal to those documents for which 
he or she is responsible. 

 
16. PRIME DESIGN PROFESSIONAL: The Owner normally contracts with a single entity as “Prime Design Professional” to provide 

the project architectural and/or engineering services. The Prime Design Professional may have all necessary disciplines in-house 
or it may subcontract with consultants to provide services in some disciplines. The Prime Design Professional may be an architect, 
engineer, or an architect/engineer entity. For each project, the Owner determines which entity will best satisfy the Owner’s 
requirements for providing services. Meeting schedule and budget limitations and managing the services to be provided on the 
particular project. 

 



    

9 

17. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: The architectural, civil, structural, mechanical and electrical portions of the project shall be planned 
and designed by or under the immediate supervision of a licensed architect or engineer (A/E) who has expertise in the particular 
discipline involved. Where such licensed expertise is not available within the A/E of record or where the A/E chooses to subcontract 
a part of the Work, the A/E shall employ an associate or consulting Architectural or Engineering firm with the requisite expertise to 
provide the required services. The consultants, associates, or subcontractors proposed by the A/E during the selection process to 
be part of the A/E project team shall perform the Work as proposed. If circumstances require a change, the A/E shall advise the 
Owner of the proposed change, the reasons therefore, and the name and qualifications of the proposed replacements. The 
replacements must be acceptable to the Owner. 

 
Associates, consultants or subcontractors proposed to be part of the A/Es project team shall be contracted by the A/E at the 
beginning of the Work and shall be active participants in all phases of the Work related to their discipline from beginning to end. 
The A/E shall be responsible to the Owner for the Work of all associates, consultants and subcontractors whether employees of 
the A/E or not, performed under the Contract. 

 
18. RELATIONSHIP OF ARCHITECT/ENGINEER TO OWNER: Once the Contract for A/E services has been fully executed, the A/E 

shall be the professional advisor and consultant to the Owner for technical matters related to the project and shall be responsible 
directly to and only to the Owner. The Owner shall communicate all approvals, rejections, change requirements and other similar 
information to the A/E. The A/E shall advise the Owner of changes necessary to keep the project within the prescribed area and 
cost limits.  

 
Generally, the Owner will observe the procedure of issuing orders to the Contractor through the A/E or, if the A/E’s construction 
period duties have been so modified, through the Owner’s designated project representative. If the Owner issues orders directly to 
the Contractor, the A/E shall be copied on such orders. 
 

19. “DESIGN NOT TO EXCEED” COST AS RELATED TO A/E CONTRACT: The Owner shall provide the A/E with a description of 
the project including information on functions, space requirements, special features and requirements, aesthetic requirements, 
authorized square footage and “Design not to exceed” construction budget. The A/E’s contract requires that if the low bid exceeds 
the “Design-not-to-exceed” cost identified in the A/E Contract by more than 10%, any A/E revisions to the plans and specifications 
required to bring the cost of the project within the “Design-not-to-exceed” cost may be executed by the A/E at no additional cost to 
the Owner. 

 
The A/E’s cost estimates shall be to a level of detail commensurate with the current level of design. The A/E shall submit a cost 
estimate with each phase submittal. If the cost estimate indicates a potential problem in securing a bid within the “Design-not-to-
exceed” cost, the A/E shall notify the Owner and shall work with the Owner to redefine the design concepts of space utilization, 
building efficiencies, materials of construction, etc., so that the estimated cost of construction does not exceed the “Design-not-to-
exceed” cost. Substantial changes in the project scope, such as those which affect the area or function of the proposed facility, 
must be justified by the A/E and may require approval of the Board of Supervisors. 
 

20. CODE AND REGULATORY COMPLIANCE: The A/E is responsible for designing the project and administering the construction 
phase of the project in accordance with the Virginia Statewide Building Code (Code), and other regulatory requirements applicable 
to the project. Nothing contained herein shall be construed as relieving any A/E, professional design consultant, supplier or any 
other participant from any professional or legal responsibility for performance. Reviews, comments and approvals by the Owner in 
no way absolve any other person, firm or corporation involved in a project from their full responsibilities under law, codes and 
professional practice as required in projects for the Owner. Lack of comment by the Owner does not relieve the A/E from designing 
to meet the Code requirements or applicable state regulations or local regulations related to water, sewer, fire department services, 
and other utilities. 

 
If the correction of a Code or regulatory violation results in a Change Order during construction, any additional costs incurred shall 
be borne by the party responsible for the violation. The Owner will bear only costs attributable to actual Code or regulation-required 
enhancement of the project. 
 
If the A/E believes that a Code or regulation is unclear as to meaning, he shall request a written opinion as to the applicable 
interpretation from the applicable regulatory agency, as appropriate, and the A/E shall be entitled to rely on the written opinion, if 
any, which he receives. 
 

21. DESIGN ERRORS AND/OR OMISSION AND A/E LIABILITY INSURANCE: The A/E shall carry professional liability insurance 
covering negligent acts, errors, and omissions in an amount not less than 5% of the estimated cost of construction of all Owner 
projects designed by the A/E which are currently under construction, but in no event shall the amount of professional liability 
insurance be less than $100,000. The A/E shall maintain this insurance in force after completion of the services under the Contract 
for a period of five years after completion of construction. 

 
The Owner’s review, approval, or acceptance of, nor payment for any of the services required shall be construed to operate as a 
waiver by the Owner of any rights or any cause of action arising out of the Contract. The A/E shall be and remain liable to the 
Owner for all costs of any kind which are incurred by the Owner as a result of negligent acts, errors, or omissions on the part of 
the A/E including its subcontractors and consultants, in the performance of any of the services furnished. 
 
The A/E shall be responsible for all costs resulting from its errors, omissions, and other breaches of the applicable standards of 
care established under Virginia law including, but not limited to, its own costs for labor and other in-house costs, any resulting 
Contractor Change Order costs including the costs for demolition, cutting, patching, repairs, removal, or modification of Work that 
is already in place, any Firm or Owner delay damages, and any judgments, fines or penalties against the Owner resulting from A/E 



    

10 

errors, omissions, and other breaches of the applicable standards of care. However, the A/E shall not be responsible for the cost 
of the correct equipment or system which should have been originally specified, except the A/E shall be responsible for any 
increased costs, whether the result of inflation, reordering, restocking or otherwise, of incorporating the corrected Work into the 
Contractor’s Contract Change Order. For the purposes of determining the A/E’s share of such costs for Work which has not yet 
been performed, the cost of Work performed by Contractor’s Change Order shall generally be presumed to be 15% greater than if 
the Work had been included in the Contractor’s Contract. The A/E shall have the burden of disproving this presumption. 
 
The Owner shall actively pursue reimbursement of costs resulting from the A/E’s errors, omissions, or breaches of the applicable 
standard of care. Upon determination that there may be A/E financial responsibility involved, the A/E shall be contacted by the 
Owner. The A/E shall be advised of the design deficiency, informed that it is the Owner’s opinion that the A/E may be financially 
responsible, and requested to provide a technical solution to the problem, including cost estimate. Upon notification of potential 
liability, the A/E should coordinate with the Owner to determine required technical support and timing to minimize delay costs. 
Pending final decision by the Owner, the A/E will be invited to attend all price negotiations with the Contractor for the corrective 
work. The A/E shall participate as a non-voting technical advisor to the Owner’s negotiator. If the A/E refuses to cooperate in the 
negotiations or disputes its responsibility, the Owner shall have the right to proceed with the remedial construction and/or change 
order negotiations without the A/E. 
 

22. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS AND MATERIALS: Ownership of all materials and documentation including the original drawings 
and the Plans and Specifications and copies of any calculations and analyses prepared pursuant to the Contract between the 
Owner and the A/E, shall belong exclusively to the Owner. Such materials and documentation, whether completed or not, shall be 
the property of the Owner whether the work for which they are made is executed or not. The A/E shall not use these materials on 
any other work or release any information about these materials without the express written consent of the Owner. 

 
Such material may be subject to public inspection in accordance with the Virginia Freedom of Information Act. Security-related 
documents and information are excluded from the Act unless a specific need to know can be shown. Trade secrets or proprietary 
information submitted by a bidder, offeror, or Firm in connection with a procurement transaction shall not be subject to disclosure 
under the Virginia Freedom of information Act, provided the bidder, offeror, or Firm invokes the protections of §2.2-4342, Code of 
Virginia, prior to or upon submission of the data or other materials, identifies the data or materials to be protected and states the 
reason why the protection is necessary. 
 
The A/E shall provide the following documents to the Owner at the completion of the A/E’s work: 

• Original sealed and signed drawings 

• Original copy of the specifications  

• Copy of analyses made the project 

• Indexed copy of the calculations made by each discipline for the project 

• The Owner copy of all shop drawings, submittals, cut sheets, operation and maintenance instructions, parts lists, and 
other material related to the project 

 
The Owner has the right to use the project documents as a prototype to demonstrate scope, size, functional relationship, etc., to 
an A/E designing a similar project. The A/E for the original project design shall not be responsible or liable to the Owner for any 
such use of the documents. 
 
The A/E for the similar project shall be responsible for providing a complete set of project and location-specific “Final Documents” 
with its seals and signatures which meet all applicable codes and standards in effect at the time those “Final Documents” are 
submitted. 
 

23. STANDARD PLANS: Where the Owner has engaged the A/E to prepare “Standard Designs” and/or “Standard Plans” for structures 
such as picnic shelters, sheds, bath houses, single family residences, cabins and utility buildings for the Owner to site adapt for 
use at various locations, the drawings for the Standard Plans shall show: 

• The name of the Owner, 

• The Title of the Standard Structure for which the design was developed 

• The name of the A/E, and 

• The seal and signature of the responsible licensed professional. 
 
The Standard Plans shall also show the applicable codes, standards, loadings and design parameters used to develop the design. 
 
Where the A/E has not been engaged to review the site adaption of the Standard Plans nor review the submittals or construction, 
the Owner, and not the A/E, shall be responsible for the proper site adaption and use of the Standard Plans. The A/E shall, however, 
be responsible for negligent acts, errors or omissions in the Standard Plans. 
 
When the Work involves the site adaption of Standard Plans, the cover sheet for the project plans shall list the drawings included 
in the set of plans and shall differentiate between the Standard Plans and the “site-specific” site development, utility, and foundation 
drawings prepared by the A/E for that site. These site-specific drawings shall be sealed and signed by the responsible licensed 
A/E. 
 

24. REQUIREMENTS FOR A/E SEALS AND SIGNATURES: General: The seal and signature of the licensed Professional Engineer, 
Architect or Certified Landscape Architect on the drawings provides notice to the public the drawings are complete and that the 
professional has exercised complete direction and control over the work to which the seal or signature is affixed. All plans and 



    

11 

 
 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  
 

 

  

  

  

  

  
 

 

  

  

  

  
 

 

  
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

25.  

 

 
 
26.  

 
 

 
 

 
27. 

 
  

  
 

specifications  for  building  projects  designed  for  the  Owner  must  bear  the  seal  and  signature  of  the  responsible  licensed 
professional.

Each drawing to be reproduced shall show:

• The name of the A/E,

• The Project Title

• The Project location

• The Project number (IFB number)

• The Drawing/Sheet Title

• The Drawing/Sheet number

• The seal and signature of the responsible licensed professional, and

• The uniform date of the completed documents.

The Title sheet drawing(s) shall also have:

• The Index of Drawings

• The Project VUSBC data

• The Seal and Signature of the A/E Principal in Charge of the project, and

• The uniform date of the completed documents

• (A/E may also require the seal and signature of a principal of its consultants).

The Specifications Table of Contents shall have:

• The Seal and Signature of the A/E Principal in charge of the project

• The uniform date of the completed documents, and

• The listing of specifications sections included for the project.

• (A/E may also require the seal and signature of a principal of its consultants).

“Working  Drawing  Sets” submitted  to  the  Owner  for  review  are  expected  to  be  complete  documents  ready  for  bidding.  All 
drawings  except  the cover  sheet shall  bear  the seal  of the  responsible  licensed  professional.  The Cover  Sheet shall show  a 
complete list of the Drawings in the set, but a seal and signature are not required at this submission.

“Final Documents” are completed documents ready for bidding and include all corrections required by the Owner review. Each 
sheet  of  the  drawings  reproduced  in  the  bid  documents,  including  the  cover  sheet,  shall  bear  the  seal  and  signature  of  the 
responsible  licensed  professional  and  a  uniform  document  date.  The  original  cover sheet  without seal  and signature  shall  be 
reproduced and attached to copies of the other drawings in the set. Each cover sheet print shall then be sealed, signed and dated 
with original seals and signatures.

“Addendum” to the Final Documents: The first sheet of each and every Addendum issued to bidders shall show the number of 
pages in the Addendum and shall list any attached sketches, drawings or other material included in the Addendum. In addition, the 
first sheet of each and every Addendum shall bear the name of the project, the project number, the date and the seal and signature 
of the responsible licensed professional.

SUBCONTRACTS: No portion of the A/E professional services shall be subcontracted without prior written consent of the Owner.
Consultants proposed by the A/E during the selection and fee negotiation phases are assumed to be acceptable to the Owner 
unless the Owner notes otherwise during those phases. In the event that the A/E desires to subcontract some part of the Work 
required  by  the  Contract  to  a  consultant  or  subcontractor  not  previously  approved,  the  A/E  shall  furnish  the  Owner  names,
qualifications and experience of the proposed consultants. The A/E shall, however, remain fully liable and responsible for all Work 
performed by his consultants and subcontractors and shall assure that their Work complies with all requirements of the A/E’s 
Contract.

DESIGN OF SECURITY SYSTEMS: Any Bidder/Offeror for the installation, service, maintenance, or design of security equipment 
or any central station alarm condition monitoring service shall be licensed by the Department of Criminal Justice Services pursuant 
to §9-183, Code of Virginia. An A/E proposing to provide any of these services with its own staff shall be exempt from the DCJS 
licensing requirement if properly licensed by the APELSLA Board (§9-183.2; Code of Virginia). If the A/E proposes to have the 
security system designed by a subcontractor/consultant, such entity shall be properly licensed as required by §9-183, Code of 
Virginia.

Any projects designed by the A/E which have such security systems shall include the licensing requirements of §9-183, Code of 
Virginia, in the specifications and the requirement that the successful bidder shall provide documentation within five (5) calendar 
days of bid opening that the entity (Contractor or subcontractor) performing the security system work possesses the proper license.

AWARD

AWARD OR REJECTION OF BIDS: Awards made in response to a IFB will be made to the lowest qualified bidder whose 
proposal is determined, in writing, to be the most advantageous to the Owner taking into consideration the evaluation factors set 
forth in the IFB.  The Owner reserves the right to reject any or all proposals and to waive any informality in proposals received 
whenever such rejection or waiver is in the best interest of the Owner.  A  The Purchasing Agent also reserves the right to reject 
the proposal if an Offeror is deemed to be a non-responsible Offeror.



    

12 

28. ANNOUNCEMENT OF AWARD: Upon the award or announcement of the decision to award a contract as a result of this 
solicitation, award results may be viewed at the Bedford County website at https://www.bedfordcountyva.gov/boards-
commissions/board-of-supervisors/agendas-minutes-resolution . 
 

29. QUALIFICATIONS OF OFFERORS: The Owner may make such reasonable investigations as deemed proper and necessary to 
determine the ability of the Offeror to perform the work/furnish the service(s) and the Offeror shall furnish to the Owner all such 
information and data for this purpose as may be requested.  The Owner reserves the right to inspect Offeror’s physical facilities 
prior to award to satisfy questions regarding the Offeror’s capabilities.  The Owner further reserves the right to reject any proposal 
if the evidence submitted by or investigations of, such Offeror fails to satisfy the Owner that such Offeror is properly qualified to 
carry out the obligations of the contract and to complete the work/furnish the service(s) contemplated therein. 

 
CONTRACT PROVISIONS 

 
30. APPLICABLE LAW AND COURTS: Any contract resulting from this solicitation shall be governed in any respects by the laws of 

Virginia, and any litigation with respect thereto shall be brought in the Circuit Court of Bedford County, Virginia.  The Firm shall 
comply with applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations. 

 
31. IMMIGRATION REFORM AND CONTROL ACT OF 1986: By submitting their bids, Bidders certify that they do not and will not 

during the performance of this contract employ illegal alien workers or otherwise violate the provisions of the federal Immigration 
Reform and Control Act of 1986. 

 
32. ANTI-TRUST: By entering into a contract, the Firm conveys, sells, assigns, and transfers to the Owner all rights, title and interest 

in and to all causes of the action it may now have or hereafter acquire under the antitrust law of the United States and Bedford 
County, relating to the particular goods or services purchased or acquired by the Owner under said contract.   Consistent and 
continued tie bidding could cause rejection of bids by the Purchasing Agent and/or investigation for Anti-Trust violations. 

 
33. PAYMENT TERMS: Unless otherwise provided in the solicitation payment will be made forty-five (45) days after receipt of a proper 

invoice, or forty-five (45) days after receipt of all goods or acceptance of work, whichever is the latter. 
 
 1.  Invoices for items/services ordered, delivered/performed and accepted shall be submitted by the Firm directly to the payment 

address shown on the task order.  All invoices shall reference the contract, task order, and any federal employer identification 
number.   

 2. Any payment terms requiring payment in less than 45 days will be regarded as requiring payment 45 days after invoice or 
delivery, whichever occurs last.  This shall not affect offers of discounts for payment in less than 45 days, however. 

 3.  The date of payment shall be deemed the date of postmark in all cases where payment is made by mail. 
4. Any payment made by the Firm to the Owner shall only be made in U.S. Dollars. If payment is received in foreign currency 

the Owner may, in its sole discretion, reject such payment and require immediate compensation in U.S. Dollars.  
 
34. PAYMENT TO SUBCONTRACTORS: A Firm awarded a contract under this solicitation is hereby obligated: 
 

1. To pay the subcontractor(s) within seven (7) days of the Firm's receipt of payment from the Owner for the proportionate share 
of the payment received for work performed by the subcontractor(s) under the contract; or 
 

 2.   To notify the Owner and the subcontractor(s), in writing, of the Firm's intention to withhold payment and the reason. 
 The Firm is obligated to pay the subcontractor(s) interest at the rate of one percent per month (unless otherwise provided under 

the terms of the contract) on all amounts owed by the Firm that remain unpaid seven (7) days following receipt of payment from 
the Owner, except for amounts withheld as stated in 2 above.  The date of mailing of any payment by U.S. Mail is deemed to be 
payment to the addressee.  These provisions apply to each sub-tier contractor performing under the primary contract.  A Firm's 
obligation to pay an interest charge to a subcontractor may not be construed to be an obligation of the Owner. 

 
35. ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT: A contract shall not be assignable by the Firm in whole or in part without the written consent of 

the Owner. 
 
36. DEFAULT:  In case of failure to deliver goods or services in accordance with the contract terms and conditions, the Owner, after 

due oral or written notice, may procure them from other sources and hold the Firm responsible for any resulting additional purchase 
and administrative costs.  This remedy shall be in addition to other remedies which the Owner may have. 

 
37. ANTI-DISCRIMINATION:  By submitting their bids/proposals, Bidders/Offerors certify to the Owner that they will conform to the 

provisions of the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, as well as the Virginia Fair Employment Act of 1975, as amended, 
where applicable, the Virginians With Disabilities Act, the Americans With Disabilities Act and Section 2.2-4311 of the Virginia 
Public Procurement Act. If the award is made to a faith-based organization, the organization shall not discriminate against any 
recipient of goods, services, or disbursements made pursuant to the contract on the basis of the recipient’s religion, religious belief, 
refusal to participate in a religious practice, or on the basis of race, age, color, gender or national origin and shall be subject to the 
same rules as other organizations that contract with public bodies to account for the use of the funds provided; however, if the 
faith-based organization segregates public funds into separate accounts, only the accounts and programs funded with public funds 

shall be subject to audit by the public body. (Code of Virginia, 2.2-4343.1(E)). 
 

In every contract over $10,000 the provisions in A and B below apply: 
 

https://www.bedfordcountyva.gov/boards-commissions/board-of-supervisors/agendas-minutes-resolution
https://www.bedfordcountyva.gov/boards-commissions/board-of-supervisors/agendas-minutes-resolution


    

13 

A. During the performance of this contract, the Firm agrees as follows: 
 1. The Firm will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, sex, national 

origin, age, disability, or any other basis prohibited by state law relating to discrimination in employment, except where there is 
a bona fide occupational qualification reasonably necessary to the normal operation of the Firm.  The Firm agrees to post in 
conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this 
nondiscrimination clause. 

 2. The Firm, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Firm, will state that such Firm is 
an equal opportunity employer. 

 3. Notices, advertisements and solicitations placed in accordance with federal law, rule or regulation shall be deemed sufficient 
for the purpose of meeting the requirements of this Section. 

 
B.  The Firm will include the provisions of A. above in every subcontract or purchase order over $10,000, so that the provisions will 
be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. 

 
38. INVOICES:  Invoices for items ordered, delivered and accepted shall be submitted by the Firm directly to the payment address 

shown on the task order.  All invoices shall show the RFP number and/or task order number. 
 
39. CHANGES TO THE CONTRACT: Changes can be made to the contract in any of the following ways: 

A. The parties may agree to a written modification of the scope of the contract.  An increase or decrease in the price of the contract 
resulting from such modification shall be agreed to by the parties as a part of their written agreement to modify the scope of the 
contract.  

 
B. The Owner may order changes within the general scope of the contract at any time by written notice to the Firm.  Changes within 

the scope of the contract include, but are not limited to, things such as services to be performed, the method of packing or 
shipment, and the place of delivery or installation.  The Firm shall comply with the notice upon receipt.  The Firm shall be 
compensated for any additional costs incurred as the result of such order and shall give the Owner a credit for any savings.  
Said compensation shall be determined by one of the following methods. 

 
 1. By mutual agreement between the parties in writing; or 
 2. By agreeing upon a unit price or using a unit price set forth in the contract, if the work to be done can be expressed in units, 

and the Firm accounts for the number of units of work performed, subject to the Owner’s right to audit the Firm’s records and/or 
determine the correct number of units independently; or  

 3.  By ordering the Firm to proceed with the work and keep a record of all costs incurred and savings realized.  A markup for 
overhead and profit may be allowed if provided by the contract.  The same markup shall be used for determining a decrease in 
price as the result of savings realized.  The Firm shall present the Owner with all vouchers and records of expenses incurred 
and savings realized.  The Owner shall have the right to audit the records of the Firm as it deems necessary to determine costs 
or savings.  Any claim for an adjustment in price under this provision must be asserted by written notice to the Owner within 
thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of the written order from the Owner.  If the parties fail to agree on an amount of 
adjustment, the questions of an increase or decrease in the contract price or time for performance shall be resolved in 
accordance with the procedures for relieving disputes provided by the Disputes Clause of this contract.  Neither the existence 
of a claim nor a dispute resolution process, litigation or any other provision of this contract shall excuse the Firm from promptly 
complying with the changes ordered by the Owner or with the performance of the contract generally. 

 
C. No modification for a fixed price contract may be increased by more than 25% or $50,000, whichever is greater without the 

advanced written approval of the Board of Supervisors. 
 
40. INDEMNIFICATION:  Firm shall indemnify, keep and save harmless the Owner, its agents, officials, employees and volunteers 

against claims of injuries, death, damage to property, patent claims, suits, liabilities, judgments, cost and expenses which may 
otherwise accrue against the Owner in consequence of the granting of a contract or which may otherwise result there from, if it 
shall be determined that the act was caused through negligence or error, or omission of the Firm or his or her employees, or that 
of the sub Firm or his or her employees, if any; and the Firm shall, at his or her own expense, appear, defend and pay all charges 
of attorneys and all costs and other expenses arising there from or incurred in connection therewith; and if any judgment shall be 
rendered against the Owner in any such action, the Firm shall, at his or her own expenses, satisfy and discharge the same.  Firm 
expressly understands and agrees that any performance bond or insurance protection required by this contract, or otherwise 
provided by the Firm, shall in no way limit the responsibility to indemnify, keep and save harmless and defend the Owner as herein 
provided. 

 
41. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE: During the performance of this contract, the Firm agrees to (i) provide a drug-free workplace for the 

Firm’s employees; (ii) post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, a statement notifying 
employees that the unlawful manufacture, sale, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance or 
marijuana is prohibited in the Firm’s workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violations of 
such prohibition; (iii) state in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Firm that the Firm 
maintains a drug-free workplace; and (iv) include the provisions of the foregoing clauses in every subcontract or purchase order 
of over $10,000, so that the provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. 

 
 For the purposes of this section, “drug-free workplace” means a site for the performance of work done in connection with a specific 

contract awarded to a Firm in accordance with this chapter, the employees of whom are prohibited from engaging in the unlawful 
manufacture, sale, distribution, dispensation, possession or use of any controlled substance or marijuana during the performance 
of the contract.  

 



    

14 

42. TERMINATION:  Subject to the provisions below, the contract may be terminated by the Owner upon thirty (30) days advance 
written notice to the other party.  Any contract cancellation notice shall not relieve the Firm of the obligation to deliver and/or 
perform on all outstanding orders issued prior to the effective date of cancellation. 

 
A. Termination for Convenience: The Owner may terminate the Contract in whole or in part for convenience by delivering to A/E 

a written notice of termination specifying the extent to which performance under the Contract is terminated and the effective 
date of the termination. Upon receipt of such notice, the A/E must stop Work, including but not limited to Work performed by 
subcontractors and consultants, at such time and to the extent specified in the notice. If the Contract is terminated for 
convenience, the A/E shall be entitled to those fees earned for Work performed in accordance with the Contract prior to the 
notice of termination. Thereafter, the A/E shall be entitled to any fees earned for work not terminated, but shall not be entitled 
to lost profits for the portions of the Contract which were terminated. The A/E will be compensated for reasonable costs or 
expenses for delivery to the Owner of the products of the services for which the A/E has or will receive compensation. 

 
B. Termination for Cause: If the A/E should substantially breach the Contract or fail to perform the services, or any portion 

thereof, required by the Contract, the Owner may terminate the Contract for cause by giving written notice as set forth above 
or may give the A/E a stated period of time within which to remedy its breach of contract. If the A/E shall fail to remedy the 
breach within the time allotted by the Owner, the Contract may be terminated by the Owner at any time thereafter upon written 
notice, effective immediately upon receipt. The Owner’s forbearance in not terminating the Contract shall not constitute a 
waiver of the Owner’s right to terminate in the future for similar breaches or failures to perform. If the Contract is terminated 
for cause, the A/E shall be responsible for all damages incurred by the Owner as a result of the A/E’s breach of Contract or 
failure to perform, including but not limited to, all costs and expenses incurred in securing a replacement A/E to fulfill the 
obligations of the Contract. The thirty (30) days advance notice requirement is waived in the event of Termination for Cause.  
 

C. Termination Due to Unavailability of Funds in Succeeding Fiscal Years:  When funds are not appropriated or otherwise made 
available to support continuation of performance in a subsequent fiscal year, the contract shall be canceled.   
 

D. Delivery of Materials: Any termination shall not relieve the A/E of the obligation to deliver to the Owner all products of the 
services for which the A/E has been or will be compensated, including, but not limited to; the original drawings and 
specifications, copies of CADD diskettes or tapes, calculations, and analyses.  Unless otherwise agreed to in writing, the A/E 
shall deliver the materials to the Owner within thirty (30) days of receipt of the notice of termination. Failure to do so shall 
result in the withholding of final payment and shall constitute a material or substantial breach of Contract. 

 
E. Compensation Due the A/E: When the A/E is terminated for convenience, the following method shall be utilized in computing 

amounts due the A/E for services prior to termination: 

• If terminated at the completion of a design phase or the bidding phase, the amount due shall be the cumulative 
total of the fees for the phases completed according to the Contract. 

• If terminated prior to completion of a design phase or the bidding phase, the amount due shall be the sum of the 
previously completed phase fees plus a negotiated amount based on the portion of services provided for the phase 
not completed. 

• If terminated during the construction phase, the total amount earned shall be the sum of the previously completed 
design phase and bidding phase fees plus a negotiated amount based on the portion of the construction period 
services provided through the notice of termination. 

• Payment for Additional Services portion of the fee shall be any portion of those services provided up through the 
notice of termination. 

• Payment for the Reimbursable Expenses shall be based on approved reimbursable expenses incurred up through 
the notice of termination. 

 
 The A/E shall submit invoices for all such amounts in accordance with the normal billing process, but in no event later than 60 

days after the last Work is performed. All amounts invoiced are subject to deductions for amounts previously paid or for amounts 
due the Owner. 

 
43. VIRGINIA FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT: All proceedings, records, contracts and other public records relating to 

procurement transactions shall be open to the inspection of any citizen, or any interested person, firm or corporation, in 
accordance with the Virginia Freedom of Information Act except as provided below: 

 
a. Cost estimates relating to a proposed procurement transaction prepared by or for a public body shall not be open to public 

inspection. 
b. Any competitive sealed bidding bidder, upon request, shall be afforded the opportunity to inspect bid records within a 

reasonable time after the opening of bids but prior to award, except in the event that the Owner decides not to accept any of 
the bids and to reopen the contract. Otherwise, bid records shall be open to public inspection only after award of the 
contract. Any competitive negotiation offeror, upon request, shall be afforded the opportunity to inspect proposal records 
within a reasonable time after the evaluation and negotiations of proposals are completed but prior to award except in the 
event that the Owner decides not to accept any of the proposals and to reopen the contract. Otherwise, proposal records 
shall be open to the public inspection only after award of the contract except as provided in paragraph “c” below. Any 
inspection of procurement transaction records under this section shall be subject to reasonable restrictions to ensure the 
security and integrity of the records.  

c. Trade secrets or proprietary information submitted by a bidder, offeror or Firm in connection with a procurement transaction 
shall not be subject to public disclosure under the Virginia Freedom of Information Act; however, the bidder, offeror or Firm 



    

15 

must invoke the protections of this section prior to or upon submission of the data or other materials, and must identify the 
data or other materials to be protected and state the reasons why protection is necessary.  

d. Nothing contained in this section shall be construed to require the Owner, when procuring by “competitive negotiation” 
(Request for Proposal), to furnish a statement of reasons why a particular proposal was not deemed to be the most 
advantageous to the Owner.  
 

44. AUDIT: The A/E, by signing the Contract, agrees to retain all books, records, and other documents relative to the Contract for 
five (5) years after final payment, or until audited by the Owner, whichever is sooner. The Owner, its authorized agents, and/or 
State auditors shall have full access to and the right to examine any of the materials during said period. 

45. COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL LAWS AND FEDERAL IMMIGRATION LAW: During the term of any 
contract, the Contractor does not, and shall not during the performance of the contract for goods and services in the 
Commonwealth of Virginia, knowingly employ an unauthorized alien as defined in the federal Immigration Reform and Control 
Act of 1986. 

46. VIRGINIA STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION: If required by law, the Contractor shall maintain a valid certificate of authority 
or registration to transact business in Virginia with the Virginia State Corporation Commission as required by Section 13.1 or Title 
50 of the Code of Virginia, during the term of the Contract or any Contract renewal. The Contractor shall not allow its existence to 
lapse or its certificate of authority or registration to transact business in the Commonwealth to be revoked or cancelled at any 
time during the terms of the contract. If the Contractor fails to remain in compliance with the provisions of this section, the 
contract may become void. 

OFFEROR/FIRM REMEDIES 
 
47. PROTEST OF AWARD OR DECISION TO AWARD: Any Offeror who desires to protest the award or decision to award a contract, 

by Bedford County, shall submit such protest in writing to the County Administrator no later than ten (10) days after public notice 
of the award or announcement of the decision to award, whichever comes first.  No protest shall lie for a claim that the selected 
Offeror is not a responsible Offeror.  The written protest shall include the basis for the protest and the relief sought.  The County 
Administrator shall issue a decision in writing within ten (10) days stating the reasons for the action taken.  This decision shall be 
final unless the offeror appeals within ten (10) days of the written decision by instituting legal action.  Nothing in this paragraph 
shall be construed to permit an offeror to challenge the validity of the terms or conditions of the solicitation.  

 
48. DISPUTES: Contractual claims, whether for money or other relief, shall be submitted in writing to the County Administrator (no 

later than sixty (60) days after final payment; however, written notice of the Firm's intention to file such claim shall have been given 
at the time of the occurrence or beginning of the Work upon which the claim is based.  Nothing herein shall preclude a contract 
from requiring submission of an invoice for final payment within a certain time after completion and acceptance of the work or 
acceptance of the goods.  Pendency of claims shall not delay payment of amount agreed due in the final payment.  A written 
decision upon any such claims will be made by Bedford County Board of Supervisors within sixty (60) days after submittal of the 
claim.  The Firm may not institute legal action prior to receipt of the Board of Supervisor's decision on the claim unless the applicable 
party fails to render such decision within sixty (60) days.  The decision of the Board of Supervisors shall be final and conclusive 
unless the Firm within six (6) months of the date of the final decision on a claim, initiates legal action as provided in Section 2.2-
4364 of the Code of Virginia.  Failure of the Board of Supervisors to render a decision within sixty (60) days shall not result in the 
Firm being awarded the relief claimed nor shall it result in any other relief or penalty.  Should the Board of Supervisors fail to render 
a decision within sixty (60) days after submittal of the claim, the Firm may institute legal action within six (6) months after such 60-
day period shall have expired, or the claim shall be deemed finally resolved.  No administrative appeals procedure pursuant to 
Section 2.2-4365 of the Code of Virginia has been established for contractual claims under this contract. 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



    

16 

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

S1. USE OF PREMISES AND REMOVAL OF DEBRIS: 

a. The contractor shall: 

(1) Perform his contract in such a manner as not to interrupt or interfere with the operation of any existing 

activity on the premises or with the work of any contractor; 

(2) Store his apparatus, materials, supplies, and equipment in such orderly fashion at the site of the work 

as will not unduly interfere with the progress of his work or the work of any other contractor; and 

(3) Place upon the work or any part thereof only such loads as are consistent with the safety of that portion 

of the work. 

b. The contractor expressly undertakes, either directly or through his subcontractor(s), to effect all cutting, filling, 

or patching of his work required to make the same conform to the drawings and specifications, and, except with 

the consent of the owner, not to cut or otherwise alter the work of any other contractor. The contractor shall not 

damage or endanger any portion of the work or premises, including existing improvements, unless called for by 

the contract. 

c. The contractor expressly undertakes, either directly or through his subcontractor(s), to clean up frequently all 

refuse, rubbish, scrap materials, and debris caused by his operations, to the end that at all times the site of the 

work shall present a neat, orderly, and workmanlike appearance. No such refuse, rubbish, scrap material, and 

debris shall be left within the completed work nor buried on the building site, but shall be removed from the site 

and properly disposed of in a licensed landfill or otherwise as required by law. 

d. The contractor expressly undertakes, either directly or through his subcontractor(s), before final payment, to 

remove all surplus material, false work, temporary structures, including foundations thereof, plants of any 

description and debris of every nature resulting from his operations and to put the site in a neat, orderly condition; 

to thoroughly clean and leave reasonably dust free all finished surfaces including all equipment, piping, etc., on 

the interior of all buildings included in the contract; and to thoroughly clean all glass installed under the contract 

including the removal of all paint and mortar splatters and other defacements. If a contractor fails to clean up at 

the completion of the work, the owner may do so and charge for costs thereof to the contractor. 

e. During and at completion of the work, the contractor shall prevent site soil erosion, the runoff of silt and/or debris 

carrying water from the site, and the blowing of debris off the site in accordance with the applicable requirements 

and standards of the Virginia Erosion and Sediment Control Handbook, latest edition, and of the contract 

documents. 

The contractor shall not operate or disturb the setting of any valves, switches or electrical equipment on the 

service lines to the building except by proper previous arrangement with the owner. The contractor shall give 

ample advance notice of the need for cut-offs which will be scheduled at the convenience of the owner. 

  

S2. PROTECTION OF PERSON AND PROPERTY: The Contractor expressly undertakes, both directly and through its 

subcontractor(s), to take every precaution at all times for the protection of persons and property which may come on the 

building site or be affected by the contractor’s operation in connection with the work.  

a. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions and 

programs in connection with the work. 

b. The provisions of all rules and regulations governing safety as adopted by the Safety Codes Commission of the 

Commonwealth of Virginia, issued by the Department of Labor and Industry under Title 40.1 of the Code of Virginia 

shall apply to all work under this contract. 

c. The Contractor shall continuously maintain adequate protection of all his work from damage and shall protect the 

owner’s property from injury or loss arising in connection with this contract. He shall make good any such damage, 

injury, or loss, except such as may be directly due to errors in the contract documents or caused by agents or employees 

of the owner. He shall adequately protect adjacent property to prevent any damage to it or loss of use and enjoyment 

by its owners. He shall provide and maintain all passageways, guard fences, lights and other facilities for the protection 

required by public authority, local conditions, any of the contract documents or erected for the fulfillment of his 

obligations for the protection of person and property. 

d. In an emergency affecting the safety or life of persons or of the work, or of the adjoining property, the contractor, 

without special instruction or authorization from the Owner, shall act, at his discretion, to prevent such threatened 

loss or injury. Also, should he, to prevent threatened loss or injury, be instructed or authorized to act by the Owner, 

he shall so act immediately, without appeal. Any additional compensation or extension of time claimed by the 

Contractor on account of any emergency work shall be determined as provided in the General Terms and Conditions. 

 

S3. WORK SITE DAMAGES: Any damage, including damage to finished surfaces, resulting from the performance of this 

contract shall be repaired to Owner satisfaction at the Contractor’s expense. 

 

S4. NEGOTIATION WITH THE LOWEST BIDDER: Unless all bids are cancelled or rejected, the Owner reserves the 

right granted by § 2.2-4318 of the Code of Virginia to negotiate with the lowest responsive, responsible bidder to obtain a 

contract price within the funds available to the Owner whenever such low bid exceeds the Owner’s available funds. For 



    

17 

the purpose of determining when such negotiations may take place, the term “available funds” shall mean those funds, 

which were budgeted by the Owner for this contract prior to the issuance of the written Invitation for Bids. Negotiations 

with the low bidder may include both modifications of the bid price and the Scope of Work/Specifications to be performed. 

The Owner shall initiate such negotiations by written notice to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder that its bid exceeds 

the available funds and that the Owner wishes to negotiate a lower contract price. The times, places, and manner of 

negotiating shall be agreed to by the Owner and the lowest responsive, responsible bidder. 

 
 
 

  



    

18 

 

 

 

 

CONTRACTOR DATA SHEET 

 

1. QUALIFICATIONS OF BIDDER:  Bidder has the capability in all respects to satisfy the 

contractual requirements as specified? 

 YES_______  NO_______ 

 

2. YEARS IN BUSINESS:  Indicate the length of time Bidder has been in business providing this 

type of service:   ________________Years  

 

 Business Name, if different in previous years: ________________________________ 

 

3. REFERENCES:  Indicate below a listing of at least three (3) recent or present contracts in which 

Bidder has provided this type of work of the size and scope specified (not including Bedford County). 

 

 

 

 

Client Name Address 
Contract 

Began 
Contact Person Phone/Email 

     

     

     

     

     

 

 

 

 

 

Check Applicable Box: 

Corporation  Partnership  Individual  Joint Venture  Other                                      

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
*RETURN THIS PAGE* 



    

19 

  

BEDFORD COUNTY  

INVITATION FOR BID (IFB)  

ELBA PARKING LOT PAVING 

BID FORM 

Page 1 of 2 

 

BID NUMBER, OPENING DATE AND FIRM NAME SHOULD BE CLEARLY MARKED ON 

FRONT OF ENVELOPE. 

 

            
FULL FIRM NAME     PHONE # (INCLUDING AREA CODE) 

 

               

ADDRESS      FAX # (INCLUDING AREA CODE) 

 

            

CITY, STATE, ZIP  FEDERAL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER 

 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

PRINT NAME OF CONTACT PERSON FOR THIS BID 

 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

E-MAIL ADDRESS 

 
Bidder agrees to furnish all services called for in the Solicitation Documents, with all Addenda thereto at the 

firm fixed prices specified on this four-page Bid Form.  

 

NON-COLLUSION: The party making the foregoing bid hereby certifies that such bid is genuine and not collusive 

or sham; that said bidders has not colluded, conspired, connived or agreed, directly or indirectly, with any bidder or 

person, to put in a sham bid or to refrain from bidding, and has not in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by 

agreement or collusion, or communication or conference, with any person to fix the bid price or affiant or of any bidder, 

or to fix any overhead, profit or cost element of said bid price or of that of any other bidder, or to secure any advantage 

against Bedford County or any person interested in the proposed contract; and that all statements in said proposal or bid 

are true. 

 

By signing this Bid the undersigned certifies that this person/firm/corporation is not currently barred from bidding 

on contracts by any agent of the Commonwealth of Virginia.  

 

Undersigned Bidder hereby certifies that he/she has carefully examined all conditions and specifications of this 

Invitation for Bid and hereby submits this bid pursuant to such instructions and specifications.  
                                                                        

TYPE OR PRINT NAME AND TITLE OF AUTHORIZED PERSON SUBMITTING THIS BID 

                                                       

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED PERSON SUBMITTING THIS BID 

   

DATE 

 

Receipt of the following Addenda are acknowledged: Addendum No. _____, dated ______________ 

 

Addendum No. _____, dated ____________     Addendum No. _____, dated ______________ 

 
*RETURN THIS PAGE* 



    

20 

BID FORM 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Anticipated Time to Completion from Notice to Proceed: __________________ 
 

The bidder understands that time is of the essence and will provide sufficient manpower and planning to 

complete the project in timely manner. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
*RETURN THIS PAGE  

 

Scope Bid Amount 

Elba Parking Lot Paving:  per section 2 Scope of Work $ 



    

21 

BEDFORD COUNTY 

INSURANCE CHECKLIST 

Elba Parking Lot Paving 
Items marked “X” are required to be provided if award is made to your firm. 

 

        Limits 

Required   Coverage Required    (figures denotes minimum) 
 X  1. Workers’ Compensation 1. Statutory Limits of the 

  and Employers’ Liability;  Commonwealth of VA 
  Admitted in Virginia  Yes 

  Employers’ Liability  $100,000/$500,000/$100,000 

  All States Endorsement  Statutory   
  USL & H Endorsement  Statutory 

  Voluntary Compensation Endorsement 

  Best’s Guide Rating-A-VIII or 
  better or its equivalent 

 X  2. Commercial General Liability 2. $1,000,000 (CSL) Each Occurrence 

  General Aggregate  $2,000,000 

  Products/Completed Operations  $2,000,000 

  Personal and Advertising Injury  $1,000,000 

  Fire Legal Liability  $50,000 Per Occurrence 

  Best’s Guide Rating-A-VIII or 
  better or its equivalent 

 X  3. Automobile Liability 3. $1,000,000 combined 

  Owned, Hired, Borrowed & Non-owned  Single Limit Bodily 

  Motor Carrier Act End.  Injury and Property 

  Best’s Guide Rating-A-VIII or  Damage Each Occurrence 
  better, or its equivalent (note, symbol “1” on liability coverage) 

       4. Prof. Errors and Omissions 4. $1,000,000 (CSL) Each Claim 

  Best’s Guide Rating-A-VIII or 

  better or its equivalent 

       5. Garage Liability 5. $1,000,000 CSL Each Occurrence 

       6. Garage Keeper’s Legal Liability 6. a) Maximum Value of One Vehicle 

  Best’s Guide Rating-A-VIII or better,   b) Maximum Value of All Vehicles  

  Or its equivalent  Held by Contractor 

 X    7. Umbrella Liability 7. $1,000,000 

  Best’s Guide Rating-A-VIII or better, 

  or its equivalent. 

       8. Other Insurance: 

      9. Auto and General Liability Policies shall be endorsed to name Bedford County as additional insured 

  (This coverage is primary to all other coverage 

  The County may possess and must be shown on the certificate) 

X                                 10. The Contractor shall provide 30 days written notice of any policy cancellation for policies specified on this 

Checklist to Bedford County in accordance with the timelines and stipulations in Code of Virginia Section 38.2-

231.  

  X    11. The Certificate must state Bid/RFP Title. 

  X    12. Contractor shall submit Certificate of Insurance within five (5) business days from notification of award, 

and shall provide updated Certificates for the duration of the contract. 

 

 

BIDDER/OFFEROR STATEMENT 

 
We understand the Insurance Requirements of these specifications and will comply in full if awarded this contract. 

 

 

    

FIRM 

 
     

SIGNATURE                              

 
 

 

 

 

*RETURN THIS PAGE*  



    

22 

 

PROOF OF AUTHORITY TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN VIRGINIA 
 

THIS FORM MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH YOUR PROPOSAL/BID. FAILURE TO INCLUDE THIS FORM 

MAY RESULT IN REJECTION OF YOUR PROPOSAL/BID 

 

Pursuant to Virginia Code §2.2-4311.2, an Offeror/Bidder organized or authorized to transact business in the 

Commonwealth pursuant to Title 13.1 or Title 50 of the Code of Virginia shall include in its proposal/bid the 

identification number issued to it by the State Corporation Commission (“SCC”). Any Offeror/Bidder that is not 

required to be authorized to transact business in the Commonwealth as a foreign business entity under Title 13.1 or 

Title 50 of the Code of Virginia or as otherwise required by law shall include in its proposal/bid a statement 

describing why the Offeror/Bidder is not required to be so authorized. Any Offeror/Bidder described herein that fails 

to provide the required information shall not receive an award unless a waiver of this requirement and the 

administrative policies and procedures established to implement this section is granted by the County Administrator. 

 

If this quote for goods or services is accepted by Bedford County, Virginia, the undersigned agrees that the 

requirements of the Code of Virginia Section 2.2-4311.2 have been met. 

 

Please complete the following by checking the appropriate line that applies and providing the requested information. 

 

A._____ Offeror/Bidder is a Virginia business entity organized and authorized to transact business in Virginia by the 

SCC and such vendor’s Identification Number issued to it by the SCC is __________________. 

 

B._____ Offeror/Bidder is an out-of-state (foreign) business entity that is authorized to transact business in Virginia 

by the SCC and such vendor’s Identification Number issued to it by the SCC is __________________ 

 

C._____ Offeror/Bidder does not have an Identification Number issued to it by the SCC and such vendor is not 

required to be authorized to transact business in Virginia by the SCC for the following reason(s): 

 

Please attach additional sheets if you need to explain why such Offeror/Bidder is not required to be authorized 

to transact business in Virginia. 

 

 

         

Legal Name of Company (as listed on W-9) 

 

         

Legal Name of Offeror/Bidder 

 

         

Date 

 

         

Authorized Signature 

 

         

Print or Type Name and Title 

 

 

*RETURN THIS PAGE* 

  



    

23 

Elba Parking Lot – Areas to be Re-paved 

 

 
 



97
0

972

974

976

978

980

982

984

986

APPROXIMATE
LOCATION

OF EXISTING
BUILDING

13

25
18

14

5
20.00'

9.
00

'

9' X 20' PARKING
SPACE TYPICAL
UNLESS NOTED

24.00'

R25.00'

R5.00'

(TYP)

STRIPED ISLAND

CART
CORRAL

6

30
.0

0'

30
.0

0'

25.58'

25.58'

EXISTING
POWER
POLE

EXISTING
POWER
POLE

EXISTING
POWER

POLE

EXISTING
POWER

POLE

R25.00'

24.00'

24
.0

0'

SUGGESTED PARKING
NOT INCLUDED IN SUMMARY

SUGGESTED PARKING
NOT INCLUDED IN
SUMMARY

N
O

R
TH

SCALE 1" = 20'

0 10 20 40

 D
ec

 2
0,

 2
02

1 
- 1

0:
37

am
  \

\D
A

TA
01

\P
ro

je
ct

s\
20

21
\2

02
12

19
2\

E
ng

in
ee

rin
g\

C
A

D
\S

IT
E

.d
w

g

FO
R

B
E

D
FO

R
D

 E
D

A
B

E
D

FO
R

D
 C

O
U

N
TY

, V
IR

G
IN

IA
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

   
 • 

   
S

U
R

V
E

Y
IN

G
   

 • 
   

LA
N

D
 D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T 
   

•  
  E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

TA
L

G
E

O
TE

C
H

N
IC

A
L 

 • 
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
 T

E
S

TI
N

G
 &

 IN
S

P
E

C
TI

O
N

  •
  C

U
LT

U
R

A
L 

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

SHEET NO.

PROJECT NO.

LAT.

CHECKED BY:
DRAWN BY:

LONG.
DATE:

20212192
37.333331°
-79.52335°
12/08/2021

ELC
PSB

REV.

REVIEW
SET

*

*T
H

IS
 S

H
E

E
T 

IS
 IN

TE
N

D
E

D
 T

O
 B

E
 R

E
P

R
O

D
U

C
E

D
 A

T 
24

"X
36

". 
R

E
P

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

 O
F 

TH
IS

 S
H

E
E

T 
A

T 
A

 D
IF

FE
R

E
N

T 
S

IZ
E

 T
H

A
N

 IN
TE

N
D

E
D

 S
H

A
LL

 V
O

ID
 T

H
E

 S
C

A
LE

 S
H

O
W

N
 O

N
 T

H
E

 S
H

E
E

T.

25
24

 L
A

N
G

H
O

R
N

E 
R

O
A

D
LY

N
C

H
B

U
R

G
, V

A
. 2

45
01

43
4.

84
7.

77
96

H
A

N
D

P.
C

O
M

THIS SHEET IS INTENDED TO BE
REPRODUCED IN COLOR. A
REPRODUCTION OF THIS SHEET IN
BLACK AND WHITE PRINT MAY NOT
SHOW ALL LINETYPES AS
INTENDED.

IN
SP

IR
ED

 / 
R

ES
PO

N
SI

VE
 / 

TR
U

ST
ED

1 of 2

C
O

N
C

E
P

T 
A

PARKING SUMMARY:
EXISTING SPACES = 72
PROPOSED SPACES = 75

esmedley
Line

esmedley
Line

esmedley
Line

esmedley
Line

esmedley
Line

esmedley
Line

esmedley
Line

esmedley
Line

esmedley
Line

esmedley
Line

esmedley
Line

esmedley
Line

esmedley
Line

esmedley
Line

esmedley
Textbox
LOADING DOCK

esmedley
Arrow



BEDFORD COUNTY EDA 

ACTION ITEM MEMO 

 

 

ITEM # 12A: Source4 Request for water infrastructure funds 

DATE:  May 4, 2023  

 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

Source4 is asking the EDA for $20,000 to offset the costs of the BRWA expenses for their recent expansion 

project. 

In April 2022, the EDA provided a $10,000 incentive for Source4’s warehouse expansion. They have completed 

their $4.5M expansion and to date have hired 18 of the 30 people promised as part of the agreement. See attached 

documentation related to expansion expenses. 

BRWA-related expenses: 

• $80K new vault with new meters (new meters were the same as the old meters) 

• $24K BRWA charge for 8-inch meter that had to replace the old meter due to a new vault requirement.  

• $16k per year in additional base charges.  

The base fees were $90/month prior to this project and now are nearly $1,500/month. 

The company is asking for additional financial support for the infrastructure upgrades as required by BRWA. 

BRWA will provide a match up to $30,000. 

The EDA has $30,974.26 in its water tower revenue sharing fund that can be used for water and sewer 

infrastructure projects. 

 

POSSIBLE EDA ACTION FOR CONSIDERATION: 

Grant Source4 $20,000 from the water tower fund for infrastructure improvements. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 











Date

3/23/2022

Invoice #

31194

Bill To

SOURCE 4
3473 BRANDON AVE
ROANOKE, VA 24018

Ship To

S.O. No.

30806

P.O. No.

020922JS

Terms

NET 10

Due Date

4/2/2022

Rep

SC

Ship Date

2/11/2022

Ship Via FOB

Total

Balance Due

Subtotal

Sales Tax  (0.0%)

Payments/Credits

http://www.yankeesupply.com

Office: (401) 934-1980 / (800) 232-7225
Fax: (401) 934-1960

InvoiceYankee Supply Co., Inc.
2140 Hartford Ave,
Johnston, RI 02919

Item Description Invoiced Rate AmountBackorderedOrdered Prev. Invoi...

SALES OR... USED TEARDROP UPRIGHT 30' X 42" 500 250.00 125,000.00T0500 0

SALES OR... USED TEARDROP BEAM 96" X 4.5" 5,500 34.00 187,000.00T05,500 0

FREIGHT-T... FLATBED LOADS 9 1,850.00 16,650.00T9 0

SALES OR... ROW SPACERS 800 3.00 2,400.00T0800 0

$331,050.00

$331,050.00

$331,050.00

$0.00

$0.00



Date

8/17/2022

Invoice #

31722

Bill To

Dominion Logistics Inc. DBA SOURCE 4
3473 BRANDON AVE
ROANOKE, VA 24018

Ship To

SOURCE 4
110 VISTA CENTER DR
FOREST VA  24551

S.O. No.

30806

P.O. No.

020922JS

Terms

NET 10

Due Date

8/27/2022

Rep

SC

Ship Date

2/11/2022

Ship Via FOB

Total

Balance Due

Subtotal

Sales Tax  (0.0%)

Payments/Credits

http://www.yankeesupply.com

Office: (401) 934-1980 / (800) 232-7225
Fax: (401) 934-1960

InvoiceYankee Supply Co., Inc.
2140 Hartford Ave,
Johnston, RI 02919

Item Description Invoiced Rate AmountBackorderedOrdered Prev. Invoi...

INSTALL-S... INSTALLATION SERVICE FOR
CUSTOMER ORDER

1 22,750.00 22,750.00T1 0

INSTALL-S... EQUIPMENT RENTAL 1 7,500.00 7,500.00T1 0

SALES OR... TRUCKS TO MOVE RACKING FROM
EMPORIA TO FOREST

9 1,025.00 9,225.00T0

$39,475.00

$39,475.00

$39,475.00

$0.00

$0.00







Sewer Base 
Water Base 
Water Capital Recovery Fee 
Sewer Capital Recovery Fee

Total

Meter# Prev Read
FROM:

07/24/22

Curr Read
TO:

08/22/22

Volume Read
Code

1569104724 2 2 0 Actual
Reading

1571336800 253 253 0 Actual
Reading

Carpe Diem Real Esta LLC
110 Vista Centre Dr
Forest, VA 24551

0010143902

($1,048.50)
$(570.00)

   $26,218.50
$26,218.50

$26,218.50

$26,218.50

$26,218.50

08/08/22

09/25/22 $28,840.35

To make a payment, have your account number ready and call
844-943-3984, scan the QR code or visit www.brwa.com and click Pay
Your Bill.

Carpe Diem Real Esta LLC

110 Vista Centre Dr

FROM: 07/24/22 TO: 08/22/22 (28) days

001014390208/31/22

09/25/22

$28,840.35

148.50
1,470.00

10,600.00
14,000.00

00101439020026218508

Carpe Diem Real Esta LLC|110 Vista Centre Dr|Forest, VA 24551|||Forest|VA|24551|(1,048.50)|26,218.50|0010143902|09/25
/22||||0000176883|||||

Page 1 of 2

Monthly Usage (Gallons)
Aug 0
Jul 0
Jun 25,478
Apr 20,050
Mar 40,100
Feb 51,700
Jan 23,000
Dec 177,800
Nov 39,100
Oct 43,100
Sep 34,900
Aug 22,800

To make a payment online, scan here.

CARPE DIEM REAL ESTA LLC
110 VISTA CENTRE DR
FOREST VA 24551-2775



Bedford Regional Water Authority
1723 Falling Creek RD
Bedford VA 24523-3137

Address Correction Request

Name: _____________________________________
Address: ___________________________________
City: _______________________________________
State: _________________ Zip Code: ___________
Home Telephone Number: _____________________
Cell Telephone Number: _______________________
Work Telephone Number: ______________________
Email Address: ______________________________

PAYMENT POLICY: Your utilities payment must be received no later than 5:00p.m. on the DUE DATE
indicated on the front of this bill. If payment is not received by the DUE DATE, a penalty in the amount of
10% of the amount billed will be assessed to your account. Service may be DISCONNECTED without
further notice.

SERVICE RE-INSTATEMENT POLICY: If service is disconnected for non-payment, the full balance,
including any penalties assessed and a reconnection fee, as published in the Bedford Regional Water
Authority’s Rate Schedule, must be paid before service is reinstated.

DISPUTED BILL: Should you feel the Bedford Regional Water Authority has made an error in your bill, or
if you otherwise dispute your obligation to pay the bill, please contact the Authority within 10 days of the
billing date.

Please address all questions concerning your bill to: Bedford Regional Water Authority, 1723 Falling
Creek Road, Bedford, Virginia 24523 or email Customer Service at customerservice@brwa.com or call
week days between 8:30am to 5:00pm at (540)586-7679.

EMERGENCY AFTER HOURS: Call (540)586-7679 and follow the instructions.

The Bedford Regional Water Authority Board of Directors meets on the 3rd Tuesday of each month at
7:00pm in the Board Room at the 1723 Falling Creek Road office.



BEDFORD COUNTY EDA 

CLOSED SESSION ITEM 

 

 

ITEM # 12B:  Forest Professional Park Covenants 

DATE:  May 4, 2023  

 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

A developer is requesting the EDA consider changing the covenants for the Forest Professional Park in order 

for him to proceed with a request for rezoning for a proposed development of 42 townhomes. The park 

currently does not allow for residential use. 

From the developer, Chris Gentry: 

I wanted to provide you with some additional information pertaining to the request to 

amend the restrictions in Forest Professional Park with regards to parcel 101-A-6Y to 

allow for the proposed development of 42 individually owned townhouses on the site. 

The current zoning of the property would allow for such a use through a Special Use 

Permit; however, the restrictions of the park do not allow for this use. 

The proposed units would be two-story units similar in construction to another 

townhouse development I was involved in on Timberlake Road in Campbell County, 

Emberly Way Villas. Emberly Way Villas was a +/- $16,500,000 project that was completed 

in 2022 and consisted of 68 units on just under 7 acres. The proposed Vista Centre project 

would have less density than that with more open space, but the overall project would 

be approximately $12,000,000. 

The parcel that the proposed development would be on has been actively marketed for 

sale for over 20 years now. The topography has made this site challenging to develop for 

commercial use and the potential for any commercial development is most likely limited 

to a small building. A townhouse development, however, could make better use of the 

topography and the resulting development would have a much more beneficial economic 

impact. This parcel is at the corner of the northern entrance into the park, and residential 

use on this site would mirror, to some extent, the southern entrance into the park where 

the existing apartment complex is located. 

I have attached some photos of the Emberly Way Villas units and the site plan. The 

proposed development on Vista Centre Drive would be similar in design. Please let me 

know if there is any additional information, I can provide you with. I look forward to 

your response. This proposal would ultimately need to be approved by a Special Use 

Permit, but the first step in this case would be to determine if the EDA is willing to amend 

the restrictions for this parcel. 

 

POSSIBLE EDA ACTION FOR CONSIDERATION: 

Amend the existing covenants to allow for residential use on 101-A-6Y parcel. 

 

 



Here is the proposed development. 

  

 



 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 














	05_04_2023_EDA_AGENDA
	04_06_2023_EDA_Minutes-Final
	YTD EDA Budget report - 4-26-23
	EDA Balance Sheet 4-26-23
	Bedford Co EDA - FY24 Proposal - lo res
	EDA Budget 2023-24 Budget - DRAFT for approval for May 2023 meeting
	EDA Action Form Memo 11A - Elba Parking Lot IFB May 2023
	Elba Paving Combined IFB
	IFB Elba Parking Lot Paving
	Concept A - parking lot - Mark-ups

	EDA Action Form Memo - Source4 water fund request May 2023
	EDA Action Form Memo - Source4 water fund request May 2023
	Source 4 Glass Associates invoice
	Inv_31194_from_Yankee_Supply_Company_22620
	Inv_31722_from_Yankee_Supply_Company_20560
	Source 4 Raymond Werres invoice
	Source4 lynfab invoice
	source4 reassessment
	Source4 BRWA bill

	EDA  memo - Forest Professional Park covenants - May 2023

